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World Presence

The Rothschild banking group has 57 offices 1n 45 countries and employs over 2,800 people around

the world Through 1ts network of subsidiaries and affiliates, the Group provides investment banking,

commercial banking, treasury, merchant banking, fund management, private banking and trust

management services to governments, corporations and indviduals worldwide
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Chairman’s Statement

In this environment more than ever,
objective advice built upon trusted
long term relationships is of great
value. | remain convinced that our
business model in providing
unconflicted advice of the highest
Quality to individuals, corporations
and governments and working with
established business partners around
the world is a powerful combination

N M Rothschild & Sons Limite




Chairman’s Statement

The economic storm that has swept through most
of the world’s developed economies has
progressed from financial sector distress through
to a general economic recession and, more
recently, concerns around sovereign debr levels
Ar uts root, these all stem from the spectacular
growth 1n leverage durning the last decade where
today we witness unsustainable levels of
indebredness 1n many parts of the domesuc,
private and public sectors The corresponding
asset price bubbles were a reflection of apparentdy
uncontrolled growth 1n debr levels

The challenge for all those concerned with curing
these economuc dlls 1s to encourage the reduction
in debt levels whilst not snuffing our the early
signs of economuc recovery and growth There are
significant dangers in the understandable policy
reaciion to shortcomings in some parts of the
financial sector Changes to the regulatory and
legal structures underpinnung the sector are vital
for long term economic health, but these must be
introduced proporuonately and progressively in a
manner thar allows the large financial insututions
that provide finance to business to contunue to
support recovery, growth and industry 1n this very
fragile environment | believe this difficulc
balancing act 15 now well understood by policy
makers but must be rercerared

There 15 a corresponding danger in progressing
structural change in the financial services industry
focussed upon, as 1t must, the largest insuruons
Smaller financtal businesses provide compenuion
and diversity for the general benefit of consumers
One size does not and should not fit all
Proportionality and flexibility are important
building blocks 1n the design of new systems

and structures

I this environment more than ever, objecuve
advice built upon trusted long term relationships
1s of great value I remain convinced thar our
business mode! 10 providing unconflicted advice
of the hughest quality to individuals, corporations
and governments and working with established

business partners around the world 1s a powerful
combination | am also pleased to note the

establishment this year of our joint fund to seek
investment opportunities in Asia alongside both
Jardine Matheson and Exor, the investment arm

of the Agnelli famuly

We are also convinced of the need to have a
geographic spread within our business operations,
parucularly in the growing markets in Asia and
South Amenica I am delighted wich the
development of our business in these regions
where we have assisted clients 1n a number of
benchmark, cross border transactions

Our business performance was pleasing last year,
though 1n the context of reduced levels of
corpotate transactiens across the globe and the
challenging environment Our ivestment
banking business provides advice on mergets and
acquisitions, privatisanons, valuations, business
strategy and general finanaing There has been an
understandable reduction 1n corperate transaction
acuvity as businesses and sponsors have stoed
back from markets [n compensation, we have
been pleased by the significant expansion in our
financing advisory business as we have assisted
clients 1n debt restructuring and 1n debr or equuty
advice as they have sought to rebuld their
balance sheet strength Revenues from financing
advice represented nearly half of our global
advisory revenues last year We have also

advised many governments in their efforts to

N M Rothschild & Sons Limied
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Chairman’s Statement

support busimesses and the economic recovery
Perhaps of note was our advice to the federal
government in 1ts support to the auromobile
industry in the United States

Qutside of the UK bank, our private banking
business has served clients well through this difficult
period and has been rewarded with strong growth
1n the assets they have entrusted for management
Our private banking business provides wealth
structuring, investment management, lending,
fiduciary and trust services to chients from 1ts main
operauens in London, Pans, Zunich, Frankfure
and Guernsey The business has experienced a 22
per cent increase 1n funds under management 1n
the year and, more importandy, good mvestment
performance for our clients focussed upon wealth
preservation Industry recognition has followed
this performance, being awarded Private Bank of
the Year by three independent organisations

The newly established Merchant Banking division
seeks to make selected private equuty and debt
investments in Europe and Asia, principally
alongside partners around the world A first
European Fund was raised during the year and
successfully closed during March Great
opportunities exist 1n the markers for privare
equity and the firm 15 extraordinanly well posiioned
to wdentfy such opportunities through 1ts nerwork
of offices and bankers throughout the world

In these difficult financial condinons, the group
has repositioned 1its assets and now some 40 per
cent of group assets are held in cash or other high
quality liquid assets  In the UK bank, some half
of all assers are held 1n high quality hquidity
Balance sheet leverage, excluding cash resources, 15
only 3 7 umes and in the UK bank 15 4 2 umes
The focus 1n our commercial banking business
has been 1o closely manage our secured commercial
credir portfolio to opumise returns as the

economy recovers This has proved a successful
strategy and the progressive reducuon in balance
sheet credit exposures has been impressive The
group has not participated 1n high volume trading
markets for many years and 1s not exposed to
significant market risks The group’s solvency
ratio 1s greater than 15 per cent and i the UK
bank stood at 18 5 per cent at year end, well
above regulatory minima The financial strength
of the group underpins our confidence that we
are well posiioned to benefir from the progressive
recovery over the coming years

[ announced in February this year the appointment
of Nigel Higgins as Chief Executve of the
Rothschild group I believe 1n the absolute
necessity to provide timely succession planning tn
all businesses, not least a family controlled
busmess [ am very pleased thar from within the
cadre of longstanding executives in the group |
was able to choose a business leader of such
experience and standing I remain as Chairman
and [ am sure that all shareholders join me 1n
wishing Nigel every success in the future

I should like to thank all of the Board members
who have stepped down from the Board thus year
In particular I should like to thank Sir Clive
Whitmore who served on this Board as a non-
executive director for some 16 years following a
very disunguished career 1n public service, Lord
Guthrie, and Sir Graham Hearne who served as a
non-execuuve director for some 40 years Therr
wise counsel will be missed

Finally, I would like to thank all our staff for therr
hard work and professionalism over the last year

David de Rothschuld
27 July 2010

The Charrman’s statement refers to the Rothschilds Continuatron Holdings AG group, the holdmg company of the
Rothschild banking businesses Some of the businesses mentioned in the statement, particularly Private Bankmg and
Merchant Banking are conducted outside N M Rothschild & Sons Limuted
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Business Review

Financial Review

Results overview

The consolidated financial sratements of the

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited group (“the
Group”) conunue to reflect the dislocated financial
marker condinons following the global financial
cnsis and detenioranion of the wider economy

Coordinated action by governments and central
banks around the world has headed off a global
depression and restored some measure of
canfidence 1n key financial markets Whulst
recovery from recession 1n the developed
economies, including the UK, 1s becoming
evident 1t 15 likely to remain fragile and structural
changes to deposit and capital markets resulting
from the cnsis are likely 1o be a permanent
feature of the new landscape Every expectanien 1s
for an extended period of low interest rates and
continucd flight te quality by investors

The Group’s profit before tax for the year ended
31 March 2010 was £137 9 mullion, compared
with £50 5 mullion last year, operating 1income
benefiting from a £133 7 million surplus arising on
the reclassificaon of perpetual subordinated
liabilities to equity The consequent revaluation
surplus whuch, 1n effect, represents the capialised
value of past funding arrangements which
“locked 1n” very low cost regulatory capital in
perpetuity, 1s explained 1n note 24 ro the
accounts Excluding this one-off 1em, profit
before tax for the year ended 31 March 2010 was
£4 2 million

Duning the year, the Group’s invesument banking
business has seen dechimng M&A revenues in
most regions due to the global fall-off in M&A
acuvity, but this has been fully compensated by a
particularly strong performance 1n our financing
advisory business compuising debr advisory,
restructunng and equity advisory services

Rothschild remained the most active Mé&A house 13
in Europe for the eighth year running and has

developed the wotld’s largest and most acuve

independent financing advisory business

In common with all commercial banking
businesses, 2009 has proved (o be a challenging
year The portfolio of assets, which 15 largely secured,
has performed comparauvely well in difficule
marker conditions Across the three businesses,
impairment levels have reduced throughout the
year and almost all borrowers are performing
above the levels they experienced in 2008

The profir for the financial year aunbutable to
sharchelders was £111 6 mullion (2009

£31 0 mullion), after non-controlling interests
of £24 5 million (2009 £10 5 million)

The Group has been successful in managing it
liquidity since the beginning of the cnsis 1n
financial markets 1n August 2007 The diversity
and matunty of the funding base has been
extended and reductions have been made in the
size of the banking and treasury books These
acuons have progressively strengthened the
Group’s capual ratios and reduced leverage The
risk asset rato was 18 5 per cent at 31 March
2010 and the overall leverage rauc of assets
(excluding cash) to equury is only 4 umes

Income

Total operatng income for the year was

£525 9 mullion (2009 £446 1 million) Excluding
one-off items of £133 7 mullion this year and

£33 4 million profit resulung from the sale of a
frechold properry last year, operaning income was
£20 5 mullion or 5 per cent lower ycar-on-year

Changed conditions in international credit markets
since mid 2007 have had a significant impact on
the Group’s banking activines A combinaton of
a reduction mn loans and advances to customers
and debt secunities, hugher funding costs and
reduced 1ncome on free funds as general interest

NM Raothschuld & Sons Lemeted
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rates have reduced, contributed to a 46 per cent
decrease 1n net nterest income o £26 3 million
(2009 £48 8 million)

Net fee and commussion 1income increased during
the year to £352 1 million (2009 £340 4 mullion)
against a backdrop of a fall-off in M&A acuvity
The major proportion of fee income 1s derived
from Investment Banking, which saw a reduction
1n M&A revenues as global corporate acuvity
declined, offset by a strong performance from
financial advisory services Financing adwvisory
revenue represents an increasing proportion of our
total revenues as we broaden and strengthen our
adwvisory capabilites Rothschild Australia, which
was acquired on 30 March 2009, contributed
£12 7 million net fee and commussion income 1n
the current year

Rothschild’s strategy has been to develop a more
resihient investment bankang franchise by creatung

a broader spread of business by product, by sector,

and by geography The strategy conunues to be
focused around independent, objecuve advice,
maintaining long term relauenships with our
clients, leveraging our global franchuse, breadth
of advice across M&cA, debt and equity capucal

Our success is
based on the
uality and value
of our advice and
our strength and
depth around

the world

markets and providing a creative environment for
top ralent The business operates on a global basts
tn co-ordination with other Rothschild group
compantes and across a full range of secrors

Trading conditions continued to be difficult for
compantes across the loan portfolio and s has
resulted 1n additional provisiens, although the rate
of deterioration 1n the latter half of the year has
reduced markedly There have been £57 6 million
of impairment losses (2009 £83 2 milhon),
including an additional £11 1 million of
collective impairment provisions

Expenses

Operating expenses increased by £20 9 million to
£326 2 mullion, largely due 1o a one-off credut of
£19 1 mullion n the prior year due to changes to
members’ benefits in dhe defined benefir section
of the group pension scheme and the inclusion of
Rothschild Australia expenses of £14 6 million
for the first ime this year Excluding these items,
total operaung expenses reduced by £12 8 mitlion
(4 per cent) year-on-year, principally due to a
decrease 1n directors’ and employees profit share 1n
line wich lower business performance Profic
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share payments reflect the performance of the
Group's businesses and provide a significant
degree of flexibility 1n the cost base

Taxation

The Group’s tax charge for the year ended

31 March 2010 was £1 8 million (2009

£9 0 million) The low effective rax rate was
prinaipally due to the surplus ansing on the
extinguishment of financal iabihues not being
subject to taxanon

Balance sheet

Total assets ar 31 March 2010 stood at

£3,231 mulhon, a reducuon of £730 million

(18 per cent) from the prior year The reduction
15 largely a result of asset repayments on maturity
and disposals As a result, the overall leverage

of the balance sheet has been reduced to a low
level as a proactive reaction to the uncertain

economic environment

Against the backdrop of what we believe 10 be a
somewhat fragile recovery 1n market confidence
the Group has continued to build and maintain a
fiquid balance sheet in line with 1s policy on
liquidity risk The balance sheet 1s therefore sull
very hiquid with cash balances replacing treasury
stocks on the asset side combuned with the
selective disposals of banking assets, while
funding has been bolstered by the renewal of
commutted funding lines Thus approach has had
an adverse impact on profits within the Banking
bustness due to reduced business volumes, higher
funding costs and lower margin 1ncome from a
smaller book Nevertheless, umprovements in
margins are helping to some extent to offset
increased funding costs

Cash at central banks and other banks have been
maintamned at ¢ £1 bilhion, represenung 31 per
cent (2009 27 per cent) of the balance sheet
fooungs at year end

NMR’s requirement for wholesale funding has 15
reduced through the renewal of specific facilities

from bank relationshups and a retail deposit

inttianve launched 1n June 2009 Thus retail fixed

deposit offer has raised signuficantly more than

ongmally envisaged, underlining the strength of

the Rothschild brand Liabilines due to customers

have increased from £663 million to

£1,236 million

Sharcholders’ equity has increased to

£384 0 mullion (2009 £291 3 million), pnmanly
duc 10 the surplus ansing on the reclassification
from liabilities to equuty interests of perpetual
subordinared liabilities During the year the
downward revaluation of secunties through reserves
(after tax) has recovered from £125 7 million to
£63 7 million, whilst actuanial losses on defined
benefit pension schemes have increased from

£54 6 mullion co £128 4 million A recencilianion
of movements 1n shareholders’ equity 1s provided
on page 44

Asset quality

It 1s the Group's policy to maintain a diverse and
granular asset book, spread across sectors and
geographies (though prinapally m the UK

and conunenral Europe) The following table
summarises the Group’s treasury and banking
assets as at 31 March 2010, showing asset type
and diversity

Treasury assets comprise primarily central bank
reserves and gilts (£0 9 bilion), short term
interbank lending (£0 2 billion) and highly rated
marketable securities (£0 5 billion), held for the
management of hquidity Together, Treasury assers
represent some 49 per cent of total assets
Banking assets are spread berween our main
bustness areas of narural resources, investment
property finance, leveraged finance and asset
finance The banking book 15 largely secured on a
wide range of collateral rypes

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
Registered Number 925279
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Treasury and banking assets as at 31 March 2010

Net Net
carrying value carrying value
2010 20i0 2009 2009

£m % £m %
Primary hquid assets
Central bank reserves 8l 30% 572 16%
UK government securities 105 4% - _

216 34% 572 16%
Other liquid assets
Short term interbank lending 183 7% 497 1 4%
Highly rated marketable securties 484 7% 890 26%

667 24% 1,387 40%
Other securities 6l 2% 47 1%
Loan assets
Property - semor 410 15% 486 | 4%
Property - mezzanine 62 2% 63 2%
Leveraged finance - senior 268 10% 382 1%
Leveraged finance - mezzanine 34 1% 37 1%
Natural resources 126 5% 239 7%
Five Arrows Finance 115 4% 137 4%
Other lending 73 3% 125 4%

1,088 40% 1,469 43%

Total 2,732 100% 3,475 100%

The Group has been reducing the size of the
commercial banking loan book and marketable
assets portfolio, and focusing more on debt fund
management and deposit-taking In the hght of
the current economic outlook there has been a
rebalancing of the banking business into fund
management actuvities and the Group has
adopted a very selective approach to the wrinng
of new banking business Asset sales remain
difficult in the current environment although the
loan book has reduced 1n the year

"Total loans at 31 March 2010 stood at

£1,088 mulion, a reduction of £381 million
{26 per cent) from the prior year The reduction
15 largely a result of loan repayments and

asset disposals

The Company and Group do nor have any
exposure to either US sub-prime mortgage
lending or structured credit dervauves

The Group’s exposute to ctedit risk 1s further
analysed 1n note 2 2 to the financial statements

Funding and liquidity

During the year the Group took advantage of the
opportumity presented by the development of a
sophisticated market 1n retail term deposits o
diversify further s funding sources with the very
successful launch of two-year and three-year
fixed-rate deposit products 1n the UK Developed
under the “Rothschild Reserve” brand this
strategy augments the wider Group’s exisung
private banking services
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The funding base of the Group 1s well diversified
both by source of funds and duranion All
customer loans are funded by customer deposits

The funding base as ar 31 March 2010 15

summansed below

Consolidated liabilities as at 31 March 2010

Bank
Other Deposits
Liabilities 9%
15%
Equity
17%
Customer
Deposits
38%
CDs
Issued
3%
Medum
Term Notes  Repurchase
12% Agreements

&%

The Group expects to meet fully the
requirements of the new regulatory hquidity
maintenance and reporung regime to which it
will be subject from 1 October 2010 The Group
remained significanty in surplus to regulatory
liquidity guidelines during the year and
maintatned 1ts membership of the Bank of
England’s Special Liquidity Scheme and

H M Treasury’s Credit Guarantee Scheme

As ar 31 March 2010 che Group held primary
liquidiey of £811 mullion with the Bank of
England in the form of central bank reserves and
£105 million of UK government securities
equivalent 1n rotal to 28 per cent of its balance
sheet Other short-term cash balances amounted
to £183 million

Capital

Total equuty at 31 March 2010 was £536 7 mulion
compared to £316 7 million at the previous year
end The increase 1s largely due to the effect of

the reclassification from habilities to equity
interests of perpetual subordinaced hiabihnes,
which increased equity non-controlling interests
by £124 3 million and retained earnings by
£133 7 mution Movements on sharcholders’
funds are analysed in the consohdated statement
of changes 1n equity on page 44

Property developments

As reported last year, the Company vacated the
New Court binlding, which has been demolished
and which will be replaced with a new building
designed by the internavonally-acclaimed architect
Rem Koolhaas The Company has entered mnto a
25 year lease of the buillding from a fellow group
company, which 1s redeveloping the site The
redevelopment project 1s on schedule and within
budget with expected completion 1n 2011

N M Rothschild & Sons timied
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Operating Divisions

Investment Banking

Qverview

Investment Banking globally provides a wide range
of advisory services to 1ts clients, including advice
on mergers and acquisiiions (M&A), privatisatiens,
valuations, strategic advice and financing advice,
including advice relating to debt, equity and
restructuring solutions Advice 1s provided 1n
both domestic and cross border situations

Our approach s charactensed by combining in-
depth global sector knowledge with a derailed
understanding of local markets We place a strong
emphasss on developing trusted long term
relanonships with clients and a significant
proportion of our revenue 15 from repeat business,
evidencing the strength of our relationship driven
approach, free from potential conflicts

Our business has grown significantly in recent
years and now represents a truly global scale
franchise We employ nearly 950 bankers
worldwide, (with over 300 outside of Eurape),
and have an established presence 1n 49 offices
in 38 countries across the globe

Duning the year, despite the challenging market
environment, we have conunued to grow the

Working together, creating
intelligent solutions and
delivering advantage

The Rothschild commitment
is to the long term success
of our clients’ businesses

Rothschild M&A 2009 league table
rankings by geography

Country/
Region

Rank by
number

Rank by
value

Worldwide
Europe
UK

France

12

Germany

Italy

Spain

Nordic

Central & Eastern Europe

Russia

- - P R T T |

[- B I P

Australia

Completed deals
Source Thomson Reuters/Dealogic

business Notable developments have been the
establishment of a new office in Doha, a new
exclusive partnership in South America, and

a number of key semor hires, including
Senior Advisers

The Group's Investment Banking business has
seen a decline in M&A revenue dunng 2009,
against a backdrop of significantly lower global
martket actvity The impact of the downturn on
total revenue was, however, mitigared by an
increase 1n activity from our Financing Advisory
franchise (which includes our debt advisory and
restructuring, and equity advisory reams)

The Group's Investment Banking business, which
1s conducted 1n Europe, the Middle East and
Australia, 1s reviewed below

M&A review of the year

Duning 2009, we were ranked No 7 for global
MA&A advisory by number of transacuons, having
advised on 219 completed deals worldwide
totalling US$201 billion 1n value
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Europe

In Europe, during each of the last eight years
Rothschild teams have worked on more M&A
transactions than any other mvestment bank
Rothschild was the No 1 ranked invesument
bank by number of deals for European M&A
advice 1n 2009 1n the food, drink & agriculture,
financial institutions, healthcare, industnals,
aerospace & defence, automouve, chemicals,
telecoms and transport sectors We also held top
5 positons by number of deals in the business
services, consumer products, retail, building
marenals, engineering & electronics, steel,
infrastructure, o1l & gas, property, media &
technology, and utliues sectors

Rothschild received the following European
awards during the year

O The Banker — European M&A Deal of the
Year (Volkswagen/Porsche) and Europe

Equites Deal of the Year (Cable 8¢ Wireless},

O FT & mergermarket — Mid matket Financial
Adwiser of the Year (3rd consecuuve year),

O Euromoney — Best Sovereign Adwviser,

O Private Equity International — Best M&A

Adviser in Europe (2nd consecutive year), and

O FEuroweek — Best LBO Adwvisory Bank of
the Year

Our UK ream advised on completed M&A
transactions totalling €20 1 billion 1n value and

was ranked No 2 by number of deals Transacuons

included advising

O Vatenfall on the €10 3 bullion acquisiuon of
Nuon PLB,

O Cable and Wireless on the £4 billion

demerger into two operatng companies,

O Lion Caputal and Blackstone Group on the
£2 6 billion disposal of 100 per cent of
Orangtna Schweppes to Suntory Holdings,

O Canadian Pension Plan Investment Board on
the A$1 37 billion offer for Macquane
Communtcanons Infrastructure Group,

O Bndgepotnt on the £955 mullion sale of Pets
at Home 1o KKR,

O Venwure Production in their defence of a
hostile final cash offer from Centrica
Resources {(UK), and

O Eircom Share Ownershup trust in relation to
STT Communicauons” €4 1 billion

recommended offer for the entire 1ssued share

capital of eircom Holdings by way of a
Scheme of Arrangement

In France, Rothschild advised on completed M&A

transactions totalling €40 8 billion 1n value and
was ranked No 1 by number of deals and No 5
by value We received Global Finance Magazine’s
award for France Investment Bank of the Year
Norable projects during 2009 included advising

O Credit Agricole on their exchange of North
African assets with Artyariwafa Bank,

N M Rothschild & Sons Lumted
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Cofidis (3 Suisses International) on the sale
of Cofidis and Monabanque to Crédit
Muruel,

On the merger berween Banques Populaires
and Caisse Nauonale des Caisses d’Epargne,

Electricité de France on the US$4 5 billion
acquisition of 49 99 per cent of the nuclear
acuvities of Constellation Energy, and

Alstom on their €4 1 billion joint acquisition
with Schnetder of Areva’s transmussion and
distribution business

In Germany, our M&A team has had a highly
successful year and recerved the Acquisitions
Monthly M&A Adwiser of the Year 2010 award

Norable transactions included advising

O Volkswagen on the creation of an integrated
automotive group with Porsche This
transaction recetved the Acquisitions
Monthly Domestic M&A Deal of the Year
2010 award as well as The Banker European

M@&zA Deal of the Year 2010 award,

Integra KGaA (a consortium of several
utilities) on the €2 9 billion acquisiion of
Thuega from E ON Ruhrgas/E ON,

Advisor to the famuly office of the Mittal
family on the acquisitton of Escada Group,

Authentos Group on the disposal of
Bundesdruckerei/Authentos to the Federal
Republic of Germany, and

O

Marcol Internauonal and Advent Internationat
on the acqusiion of Median Kliniken

In Italy, Rothschild was among the leading
advisers on both large and mid-size transactions,
further increasing its presence in the o1l 8 pas,
consumer and industnial sectors while continuing
1ts leadership 1n financial institutions

Rothschild also recerved awards for the Best Banking
M&A Deal (for GE’s acquisition of Interbanca)

and Best Internanonal Investment Bank 1n Ttaly
from Milano Finanza magazine 1n 2009

Qur Iraly team advised on the following notable

M&A deals

O Eni on the disposal of ltalgas and Sroccagg

Gas ltalia 1o Snam Rete Gas for €7 2 billion,
(]

Intesa Sanpaolo on the disposal of the
secutities services business to State Street

Corp for €1 8 bilhion,

ERG on the creation of a joinc venture with
Tortal 1n the Italian marketing and refining
downstream business for €1 4 bilhion, and

O

Finmeccanica on the €1 2 billon strategic
partnership with Sukhos

In Spain, Rothschuld advised on announced
transactions totalling €8 2 billion 1n value
including

O Confide and Cartalana Occidente, sharcholders
of Grupo SAR, on the disposal of a 70 per
cent stake 1n the company to Palamon
Capital and G Square,

Metrovacesa, Spain’s No 1 real estate company
by assets value, on the disposal of the car
park subsidiary Metropark Aparcamientos to
The Interparking Group, one of Europe’s
leading off-street car park operators,

Barilla, the leading Italian food group, on the
disposal of the Spanish bakery subsidiary La
Bella Easo to Panrico,
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Rothschild uses a range of

financing techniques to help
our clients achieve the most
beneficial funding structures,
including traditional balance
sheet funding and innovative
use of debt capital markets

O Banco de Santander and Gas Natural on the
disposal of the combined 37 5 per cenr stake
in CEPSA, Span's second largest integrated
o1l and gas company, for a total consideration

of €3 2 bullion, and

O Suez Environnement on the acquisition of
full control of Sociedad General de Aguas de
Barcelona for a total consideration of
€946 mullion and simultaneous disposal of

Adeslas for €687 mullion

2009 was a breakthrough year for Rothschild in
the Nordic region advising on many of the major
transactions propelled 1t to being ranked No 1
MB&A adviser in the Nordic region by value The
year saw Rothschild launch its permanent office
in Stockholm and advise three our of the four
major Nerdic governments on the financial cnisis

Notable M&A advisory mandates included

O The Damsh Minsstry of Transport 1n relauon
to the merger berween Post Danmark and
Posten AB,

O The Government of Sweden 1n relanen to its
19 9 per cent stake 1n Nordea and parnicipation
in the €2 5 billon nghes issue, and

O Rolls-Royce on the acquisition of a 33 per
cent stake in ODIM from Aker Solutions
and subsequent recommended voluntary

offer for ODIM

Levels of acuvity withun Central, Eastern Europe
and Turkey rose with the challenges of the global

economic environment and many of our

compettors retrenching The complexities of the 21
region were emphasised with certain nanonal

economues either performing well, such as Poland

and Turkey, or facing major sovereign restructurnngs,

such as Estonia, Hungary and Ukraine

Rothschild was awarded Balkan Adviser of the Year
by Acquisitions Monthly, and CEE M&A Deal of
the Year by emeafinance for the sale of Zentiva

Notable transactions included

O In Lithuania, advising the Board of TEO
on the offer by TeliaSonera for the
outstanding shares,

O In Poland, Associated British Foods on the
disposal of British Sugar Overseas Polska,

O In Belarus, advising on the disposal of BPS o
Sberbank, one of the carly large privausanons
in the country,

O In Romama, advising the sharcholders of
Ozone Laboratories Group on the sale of
assets to Advent’s local pharma business,
Labor Med,

O In Greece

— Emponk: Bank Credit Agricole on the sale
of Nauonal Fernlisers Industries,

— Hellemc Petroleum on the acquisition of
BP’s retail business 1n Greece,

— Cosmote on the acquisition of the
Romanian mobile business ZAPP, and

O In Turkey, advising Anadolou Efes on
acquinng shares in EFES Breweries
International

Qur business 1n Russia continues to go from
strength to strength, including being engaged by
Rusal, the world leading aluminium producer, on
the US$17 hilhion restructuring and subsequently
as independent equity adviser on its Hong Kong
[PO (the first ever Russian company to list 1n
Asia) Norable M&A transactions during the year
included advistng
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Telenor, opposite Alumo, on their

US$29 5 billion merger of O]SC
VimpelCom and Kyivstarm, which was
awarded emeafinance magazine’s M8¢A deal
of the year in EMEA,

Daimler on the establishment of 1ts long
term partmership with Kamaz, and

Alstom on their strategic partnership with
Transmashholding

Australia

In Australia, Rothschild conunues to focus on
specific industry sectors where we beheve we can
combuine global knowledge with expertise of the
local market, primarily naturai resources, uulities,
infrastrucrure, imdustrials and consumer products

Notable deals concluded 1n the year included
advising

(0 The Queensland Government {ongoing

advisor) on their assets sale programme which

includes Forestry, Ports, Rail and Toll roads,

Royal Dutch Shell on the US$3 4 bulion
joint offer with PetroChina Company for
Arrow Energy

ABN AMRO on the sale of their interest in
Allegro Private Equuty Fund 1,

O Macquarie Letsure Trust Group — adviser to
the Independent directors on the
internalisation of the management
agreements as well as a A$60 million equiry
raising, and

Geely Automobile Holdings on the

A$48 mullion acquisition of the assets and
business of Drivetrain Systems Internarional
from appointed Receivers and Managers

Debt advisory and restructuring
review of the year

In Debt Advisory, our teams determine the night
debe objectives and strategy, select the nght
products and providers and transact on the best
terms, on behalf of our clients In 2009,
Rothschild recerved the following awards in
recognucion of 1ts marker leading pracuice

O Acquisinons Monthly award for Debt
Advisory House of the Year {for the 2nd

consecunve year),

O The Treasurer award for Loan of the year
>£750 mullion Barratt Developments, and

O

The Treasurer award for Loan of the year
<£750 million Marstons

In Restructuring, Rothschild has unparalleled
vistbility on the restructuring deals being done
today, based on the team’s global scale, market
leading posiuon and integrauon with the most
actve M&A team in Europe The team has
unsurpassed expertise 1n structuring deals for
today’s market, engaged in debror, sponsor,
crecdiror representation, using state-of-the-art
technology The team adwvises on restructuring
solutions mncluding debrt for equity swaps, new
money injections, debt to hybnd, converuble
bond restructurings, deleveraging disposals and
mergers and rescue rights 1ssues

In 2009, the restructuring team recetved
numerous awards 1n recognition of 1ts market
leading franchise including the following

O

Thomsons Reuters Acquisiions Monthly
Restructuring Adviser of the Year,

O Euroweek Restructuring House of the Year,

O Dow Jones Financral News European
Rescrucruring House of the Year,

O The FT’s Banker 1B Awards for Most

Innovauve 1n Corporate Restrucruring, and
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O IFR EMEA Restructuring Deal of the Year
IMO Carwash

During the year, Themson Reuters released therr
inaugural restructuring league tables for 2009
Rothschild rankings were as follows

0 Global Ranked 2nd by number and 6th by

value of completed deals,

O US Ranked 3rd by number and 8ch by value
of completed deals,

O EMEA Ranked 1st by number and 2nd by
value of completed deals, and

O Asia-Pacific & Japan Ranked 5th by number
and 2nd by value of completed deals

In the UK, sigmficant debr advisory mandates
completed duning the year included advising

O Yell Group on a covenant re-set on
¢ £3 9 bullion of syndicarted bank facilities

involving 330 lenders,

0 Taylor Wimpey on the renegotiation of 1ts 23
£2 5 billion debr facilities comprising bank
debt, US private placements, and Eurobonds,

O Smurfic Kappa Group on a set of amendments
to 1ts €3 6 billion banking facilities,

O First Group on a technical covenant
amendment on £2 billion of debt facilities and
the 1ssue of £200 million bonds due
September 2024 and £350 million bonds due
Apnl 2021,

0O Investcorp on a US$575 mullion combined
refinancing and forward start facihy,

O Persimmon on reserting 1ts financial
covenants relating to £800 million commitced
banking facility and US$950 mullion of debt
private placements, as well as negouatng a
£322 mullion forward start facility, and

O Northgate on 1ts £880 million refinancing

Successful significant restructuring mandates 1n

the UK and Ireland included advice to

O The Government of Ireland Department of
Finance on advice 1n relanion o the creation
of a €77 billion bad bank and extended
lLiability scheme,

O The UK Governmen: on financial restructunng
negouatons with Jaguar Land Rover,

O Gala Coral mezzanmine debtholders on
restructuning options related to €2 7 billion
of debt facilinies,

O McCarthy & Stone Group on a £980 mullion
full balance sheet restructunng involving the
first use of a pre-pack and UK scheme,

0O Songbird Estates on the US$880 mullion
capttal restructuring of Canary Wharf, and

O  Dar Capital on the restructuring of Aston
Marun
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In France, significant debt advisory and

restructuring mandates included advising

0

]

O

Autodistnbunion Group on the restructunng
of 1ts €550 million outstanding debt faciliies
by pre-packaged Sauvegarde,

Printemps €765 mullion debt restructurning,

Via Locanion on 1ts covenant reset on

€350 mulion of LBO debr,

Rexel on the renegouation of 1ts €3 7 bullien
of indebredness,

Materis and sponsor Wendel on a
€2 1 billion LBO debt restructuring, and

Kaufman 8 Broad and sponsor PAI Partners
on a €1 2 billion LBO debt restructuring

In Germany, mandates included advice ro

O
G

KION Group on its €3 billion covenant reset,

Siemens on the stapled financing for the
disposal of ADB to Mentagu,

PAI Partners and FTE Automotive on a
€275 miullion covenant amendment,

Opystar Holding on the amendment of the
€250 million financial restructunng, and

SAF Holland Group on the restructuring
and extension of 1ts €316 million senior
debr facilities

In Iraly, Rothschild has further consolidared its
market leadership spanning debt advisory and

restructunng advising on a sigmificant proportion
of the scale deals 1n the market

a

Adviser to the Extraordinary Adminstrator
on the €1 1 bdlion disposal of Alicalia’s main
assets to CAI out of insolvency,

Seat Pagine Gualle on negonaning a waiver

1n respect of 1s €1 5 billion senor debe
facilities and the 1ssue of €550 milhon seruor
secured bonds,

0O Ferretu on 1ts €1 2 billion debt restructuning,

O Tiscali on the restructuring of 1ts €790 mullion
indebredness,

O Koelliker Group on 1ts €670 million financial

indebtedness restructuring, and

O Comifar Group on the renegotiation of s
€900 mullion financial indebtedness

In Spain, the debt advisory and restructuring
business gained significant market share including
advising on the following mandates

O Permira and 1ts portfolio company Dinosol,
1n the amendment of Dinosol's €400 million
debrt facihiues, and

O Fipar/HoldCo, subsidiaries of the Moroccan
Caisse des Dépérs et de Gestion, on the
reorganusation of the share capital of
MédiTelecom and on their acquisituon,
alongside FinanceCom, of 64 36 per cent of
MédiTelecom share capital from Portugal
Telecom and Telefonica, together with their
ousstanding sharcholder loans in MédiTelecom
for a total consideration of €800 million

In the Middle Easr, the fourth full year of
operations saw continued successful growth 1n
terms of both mandates and effecttve geographic
coverage across the GCC, with a full service
M&A and Financing Advisory team operating
berween Abu Dhabi, Dubai and our new office 1n
Doha, Qartar

Notable Restructuting transacuons include advising

O Duba World on 1ts US$26 billion financial

TeStructuring, leld

O the Omam Investment Fund on the
restructuring of one of 1ts real estate assets
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Equity advisory review of the year

Our Equity Advisory bankers possess extensive
expertence in 1mitial public offerings, capiral
raisings, dual track exis, block trades, converuble
and exchangeable bonds We keep close to the
market through a direct dialogue with insututional
investors and other market parucipants, via our
corporate brokerage desk 1n Pans for connnental
European investors, our independent analysis of
equity transactions as they happen and analysis of
sell-side research view from muluple brokers

Our Equity Advisory team advised on a number
of sigmficant transactions, including advising

O The Government of Denmark on 1ts
DKK100 billion scheme to recapitalise banks

and mortgage institutions,

O Wolseley on a £1 billron capiral raising via a
£270 million placing and £780 million
rights 1ssue,

O Songbird on a £880 mullion 1ssue of ordinary
and preference shares,

D Yell on a £660 millien firm placing and
open offer,

O DGSiona £311 million new equity 1ssue
including a £100 mullion firm placing and a
£211 mullion nghts issue,

O Premier Foods on a £404 mullion equity
fundraising,

O PPR. on the PO of subsidiary CFAQ,

O Spohn Cement on the €4 4 billion combined
rights 1ssue and secondary share placing of
Heidelberg Cement The transaction recerved
the IFR 2009 EMEA Equity Issue of the Year
award, and

O EFG Eurobank of Greece on 1ts
Exchangeable Bond

Commercial Banking

The Group’s Commercial Banking activities are
confined to the Commercial Property, Leveraged
Finance and Nartural Resources sectors The
portfolio 1s focused on mid marketr UK property
compantes, the larger european leveraged buyouts
and mid-size global mining compantes In
common with all commeraial banking businesses,
the year to March 2010 has proved o be
challenging The portfolio of assets 1s largely
secured and has performed 1n line with
expectatiens 1n difficult marker conditions
Across the three businesses, impairment levels
have reduced 1n the second half of the year with
an impawrment charge of £13 6 million compared

to £44 0 million 1n the first half

The Commercial Property business provides
medum term funding secured on commercial
property throughout the UK, the underlying
lending decision 1s made based upon the certainty
over future rental flows

The Leveraged Finance team 1s a participant in
senior and mezzanine debt within leveraged buy-
outs across UK and Western Europe
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The Natural Resources team provides corporate
and project financing to international mining and
metals compantes and also provides structured
commodity financing to nawural resource
companies 1n emerging markets

In addiuon to the Commercial Banking business
we continue to operate the Five Arrows Finance
business, which provides a range of asset
financing facihues to compames in the UK,
including leasing and asset-based lending Thus
business has maintained a robust performance
throughout the year, based upon improving
margin tncome and low levels of impairment

Over recent years the banking business has
diversified 1nto managing loan assets for thard
party wnvestors At present this includes boch
senior debr and mezzanme funds, along with the
portfolio of investment properties managed
through Lanebridge

Finally, during the year we launched Rothschild
Reserve, a deposit-taking business, which
complements the exisung private chient activities
of the Rorhschuld Group There have been two
Rothschild Reserve deposit offers to date and
further products are planned

Risk Management

The Group Rusk Director co-ordinates nisk policy
and promotes the development and maintenance
of effecuve procedures throughour the Group
Our internal audit team reviews our internal
control framework and reports 1ts findings to

the Audit Committee

The responsibilities and membership of the Board
Commuttees involved n the oversight of nsk
management are set out on pages 34 and 35

Credit Risk

Credit risk anises from our lending and trading
acuvittes The Credit Commuttee sers lumats,
reviews concentrattons, Monitors exceptions and
makes recommendations on credit decisions to
the Group Assets and Liabilinies Commuttee

Credit nisk anising from treasury dealing acuvines
1s measured on a real-ume basis wheteby all
exposures relaung to a parucular counterparry are
aggregated and monitored against limies Credut
risk on derrvative transactions 15 measured by
summing the current exposure with an allowance
for potenual furure exposure

Market Risk

Market nsk arises as a result of our acuvities in
currency, interest rate, debt and equiry markers
During the year, our exposure to market nisk has
contnued to be small in relation to our capital, as
our Treasury trading activities have been focused
on managing the Group’s exposure to interest rate
and currency nsk Market nisk figures for the
Company are set out tn note 2 3 to the financial
statements with a descripnion of the methodologtes
used 1o momtor and control market nisk

We use financral instruments to manage our
exposure to market nisks and to take or alter our
views on furure movements 1n exchange rates,
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The 1dentification, measurement
and containment of risk is
integral to the management of
our businesses. Our nisk policies
and procedures are regularly
updated to meet changing
business requirements and to
comply with best practice

interest rates and volaulity levels Interest rate
derivanives are used to hedge interest rate
exposures ansing from our lending and
corporate treasury actvities

Limuts on market risk exposure are set by the
Execunve Commuttee, mainly using the value
at risk methodology described 1n note 2 3
Monutoring of market risk limits and
determination of trading profits are undettaken
daily independently of the dealing area Whlst
value at risk 15 central to the communicarion and
control of nisk, 1t 1s complemented by other
controls These include stress tesung, which
esumates the losses which could occur when
markets behave 1n unusually volaule ways and
with lictle Liquuidicy

Liquidity Risk

Liqudity risk anises from the funding of our
lending and trading acuvinies The Group
Assets and Liabilines Commuttee recommends
policies and procedures for the management

of hiqudity nsk

Liquidity 1s measured by classifying assets,
liabilities and other cashflows into future nme
bands using a seties of prudent assumpuons and
calculating the resulrant surplus or deficit 1n each
period The Group Assets and Liabilines
Commuttee has set deficit limuts for each peniod,
which are monttored daily independently of the
dealing area

Operational Risk

Operanonal nisk, which 1s inherent 1n all business
actrvinies, 1s the nisk of loss resulting from inadequare
or falled internal processes, people and systems or
from external events Key to our management of
operanonal risk 1s the maintenance of a streng
framework of internal controls These are subject
to regular independent review by our internal audit
department, whose findings are reported to the
Group Audic Commuttee which momitors the
implementanon of any recommendations
Operational nsk encompasses reputational nisk,
which 15 parucularly relevant to our business
Reputational risk 1s managed through formal
approval processes for new business and operational
procedures for the conduct of business The Group
maintans insurance policies to mitgare loss in the
event of certain operanonal risk events

Other Material Risks

Other risks which are, or may be, matenal arise 1n
the normal conducr of our business Such risks,
which incdlude concentration nsk, pension fund
nisk and residual nsk, are idennfied and managed
as part of cur overall sk controls and are taken
into account 1n the Board’s pertodic assessment of
capital adequacy

27

N M Rothschid & Sons Limated
Regisiered Number 925279




Report of the

Directors Committees
Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities n
Relation to the Independent
Report of the Auditors’ Report

Directors and the
Financial Statements

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
Registered Number 925279




Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Direcrors’ report and finanaal statements for the year ended 31 March 2010

Principal Activities and Business Review

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary undertakings (rogether with the
Company, “the Group™), provide a comprehensive range of banking and financial services The Company’s
principal place of business 1s at New Courr, St Swithin’s Lane, London, EC4P 4DU A review of the
activities of the Group for the year, including an indicatien of likely furure developments, 1s contained
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 9 and 10 and the Business Review on pages 13 to 27

Results and Dividends

The profit for the financial year attributable o sharcholders after tax and non-controlling interests was
£111,603,000 (2009 £30,985,000 ) This amount has been dealt with as follows

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Ordinary dividends paic 30,000 -
Transfer to reserves 81,603 30985
111,603 30,985

Corporate and Social Responsibility

The Group 15 commutied to supporung the principle of equal opportunitics and opposes all forms of
unlawful or unfair discrimination on the grounds of colour, race, nauonality, ethmic ongin, gender, marual
status, disability, religion, age or sexual orentanion The Group’s aim 1s o recruit, train and promote the
best person for the job and to create a working environment free from unlawful discrimmauon,
victimmisation and harassment, and 1n which all employees are treated with digmiry and respect

The Group 1s commutted to supporting charities both 1n the areas 1n which it operates and 1n the wider
commumty The Charities Commitree was established in 1975 to consider the hundreds of requests
recerved every year from chanues secking financial support The sum of £433,000 (2009 £439.000) was
charged against the profits of the Group duning the year in respect of gifts for chantable purposes No
political contribunions were made during the year

Typical beneficianies continue to include orgamisanons concerned with elderly people, healthcare, social
welfare and educanion Requests for support from staff in respect of charirable causes with which they are
associated, or have an invalvement, are acuvely encouraged
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Rothschild in the Community

Through the Rothschild in the Community programme, our people have continued to give their nme to
the support of local schools and community orgamisanons 30 per cent of UK staff volunteered ar least
once this year, with many people participaung on an ongoing basis Programme highlights have included
the launch of a successful Young Enterpnise scheme at South Camden Community School, and the
development of a new ‘transition mentoring’ imtiative designed to support Tower Hamlets children as
they make the move from Old Palace Primary School to Bow School of Maths and Computing We continue
to offer senuor Rothschild mentors to teachers and managers at our partner schools, in the recognition
that both mentor and mentee will gain new insights and fresh perspectives through this process

We are delighted recently to have been awarded a Business in the Community ‘Big Tick’ in recogmuon
of our long-term commitment to raising aspirations and achievement at our partner schools

We conunue to develop our links with the wider Bow and South Camden communtties Volunteers have
this year helped to run Chnistmas parties for teenage parents and elderly people at the Bromley by Bow
Centre and Toynbee Hall, carrned out a range of environmental improvements at Stepney City Farm, and
cleaned Camden’s Pirate Castle Youth Club in preparation for a special fundrasing event In August we
ran our first ever volunreering day for our global graduate recruuts, and plan to make this an annual event

Rothschild and the Environment

We recogmise that Rothschild’s day to day operations have an impact on the environment and we are fully
commutted to doing what we can to reducing that impact, to promoting environmental awareness
amongst our people, and to achieving conunuous improvement 1n our environmental performance We
are members of Business 1n the Commumity’s MayDay Network, and are proud to be represented on the
Prince of Wales’ MayDay Leadership Team

Qur greatest priority 1s to reduce year on year our carbon emussions relaung to energy use In 2009/10
we reduced UK enmusstons by 3 per cent compared with the previous year, and aim to reduce them by a
further 2 per cent 1n the year ahead We promote a policy of reducing waste, reusing what we or others
can, and recycling what remains We have recently swapped disposable coffee cups for reusable mugs,
switched printer settungs to duplex where possible, and introduced recycled paper as standard We have
achieved Gold 1n the Clean City Awards for three years runming

Staff

During the year the Group continued wath its long-established policy of providing employees with
information on matters of concern to them and on developments within the Group by a series of nouces
to staff The Group encourages staff to put forward their views through a staff consultative commitree
The interest of all staff in the performance of the Group 15 realised through the Group’s profit sharing
scheme 1n which staff ar all levels parucipate

The recruiment, training, career development and promotion of disabled persons 1s fully and farly
considered having regard to the apurudes and abilities of each individual Efforts are made to enable
employees who become disabled duning employment to continue their career with the Group and, if
necessary, appropriate tramming 1s provided
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Supplier Payment Policy

The Group does not currently follow any code or standard on payment practice It 1s the Group’s policy
to settle the terms of payment with those suppliers when agreeing the terms of ecach transacuion, to ensure
that those suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment and to abide by the terms of payment
Included within habilitses 15 the amount due o trade creditors which, at 31 March 2010, represented 31
days purchases outstanding

Directors

The names of the present Directors of the Company are shown on page 5

The following Directors have been appointed since the last Annual General Mcening Richard Marun
(19 November 2009)

1he follawing Directors have all restgned since the last Annual General Meeung Paul Barry, Anthony
Chapman, Chnistopher Coleman, Lord Guthnie, Richard Martin, Andrew Tovell, Philip Yeates (all 26
May 2010). limothy Hancock (21 June 2010), Sir Graham Hearne (10 Junc 2010) and Sir Clive
Whirmore (4 June 2010)

Financial Risk Management

1 he financal risk management objectives and policies of the Company and the Group tn respect of the
use of finanaial instruments, together with analyses of exposures to credit risk, market risk and liquadicy
risk, are set out 1n note 2 to the financial statements

Auditors

KPMG Audir Ple have indcated thewr willingness to continue i office and a resolution to re-appoint
them and to authonse the directors to determine their remuneranon will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meetng, 1n accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006

Audit Information

'he Directors wha held office at the date of appioval of this report confirm thac, so far as they are each aware,
there 15 no relevant audit informatien of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each Director
has taken atl the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any relevant
audit informauon and o establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that informauon

By Order of the Board

]ocﬂmn Westcott, Secretary

New Court, St Swichin’s Lane, Londen EC4P 4DDU
27 July 2010

=
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Committees

To facilitate the efficient adminsstration of the Company’s and the Group's affawrs, certain functions and
responsibilities have been delegated by the Board to the following commuttees, the terms of reference and
membership of which are regularly reviewed

Group Management Committee

The Group Management Commuttee reports to the Board of Rothschilds Continuauon Holdings AG,
an intermediate parent company Its purpose 1s to formulate strategy for the Rathschild group’s businesses,
to assess the delivery of that strategy, to ensure the proper and effective functioning of group governance
structures, operating policies and procedures, to define the group’s nsk appeute and to be responsible for
the management of risk

Membership David de Rothschild (Chairman), Enc de Rothschild, Anthony Alt, Paul Barry, Andrew
Didham, Frangois Henror, Nigel Higgins, Marc-Olivier Laurent, Robert Lendo, Vet de Maddalena,
Richard Marun, Olvier Pécoux, Jonathan Westcott, Nicholas Wrigley

Group Assets and Liabilities Committee

This commuittee reports to the Group Management Commuttee It 1s responsible for ensuring that the
Group has prudent funding and Liquidity strategies, for the efficient management and deployment of
capital resources within regulatory constraints, and for the oversight of the management of the Group’s
other financial strategies and policies sex by the Group Management Commuitee

Membership Anthony Alt (Chairman), Chnstopher Coleman, Paul Copsey, Andrew Didham, Adam
Greenbury, Timothy Hancock, Richard Martin, Matthias Montan, Andrew Tovell, Jonathan Westcott,
Philip Yeartes

Credit Committee

This commuttee authorises and reviews all credit exposure to new and existing counterparties Exposures
exceeding certain limits are subject to ratfication by the Group Assets and Liabilites Commuttee

Membership Timothy Hancock (Chairman), Christopher Coleman, Paul Copsey, Andrew Didham,
Leigh Enevoldson, Adam Greenbury, Peter Griggs, Debra Lews, Alan Park, John Sealy, Paul Thompsen,
lan Walker, Claire Whittet, Nicholas Wood, Philip Yeates




Committees

New Client Acceptance Committee

This commuttee approves, from a reputational, money laundering and due dihgence perspecuive, all new
clients to be accepted by the Investment Banking business

Membership Crispin Wright (Chairman), Timothy Hancock, Dominic Hollamby, Richard Murley, Axel
Stafflage, Albrecht Stewen, Maunce Topiol, Stuart Vincent, Willlam Wells, Jonathan Westcotr, Adam Young

Group Audit Committee

This committee of the Board of Rothschilds Connnuation Holdings AG supervises and reviews the
Group’s internal audit arrangements, liaises with the Group’s external auditors and monitors the overall
system and standards of inrernal control

Membership Peter Smuth (Chairmany), Sylvain Hefes, Bernard Myers, Sir Clive Whitmore

Group Remuneration and Nominations Committee

This commurree sets remuneration policies for the Group, oversees the annual remunerauon review and

approves proposals for prometion

Membership Sir Clive Whitmore (Chairman), David de Rothschild, Enc de Rothschild, Mark Evans,
Sylvain Hefes
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in Relation to the Report of the Directors
and the Financial Statements

The Directots are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requures the Directors to prepare Group and Parent Company financial statements for each
financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare both the Group and the Parent
Company financtal statements m accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable law

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satsfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit
or loss of the Group and Parent Company for that period

In preparing each of the Group and the Parent Company financial starements, the Directors are required to

- select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
- state whether they have been prepared 1n accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 15 nappropriate to presume
that the Group and che Parent Company will continue 1n business

The Directors are respansible for keeping adequate accounting records thar are sufficient to show and
explain the Parent Company’s transacuons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial
position of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 They have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them ro safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and derect fraud and other irregularities




Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Members of N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial statements (the “financial statements™) of
N M Rothschild & Sons Limited for the year ended 31 March 2010 set out on pages 41 w 112 The
financial reporung framework thar has been applied 1n their preparauon 1s applicable law and International
Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and, as regards the Parent Company
financial statements, as applied 1n accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Thus report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance wich Chaprer 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit wotk has been undertaken so that we mughr state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audic work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Dhirectars’ Responsibiliies on page 36, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view Our responsibility 15 to audit the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditung Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

A descripuon of the scope of an audir of financial statements 15 provided on the APB’s web-site at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKNP

Opinion on Financial Statements

In our opimon

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent
Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

— the Group financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with 1FRSs as adopted by
the EU,

—  the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance wich IFRSs as
adopted by the EU and as applied 1n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

—  the finanaial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Members of N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

Opinion on Other Matters Prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on Which we are Required to Report by Exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you 1f, in our opinion

— adequate accountng records have not been kept, or returns adequare for our audit have not been
recetved from branches not visited by us, or

~  rthe financaial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounung records and returns, or
—  certain disclosures of Directors’ remuncration specified by law are not made, ot

—  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

oty

Karnm K ng-t,(Semor ’taturory Auditor)
For and on behalf of KPMG Audic Ple, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
Canary Wharf
Lendon

El4 SGL

27 July 2010

N M Rothschild & Soms Limzted

Registered Number 925279




Consolidated In
For the year ended 31 Marc

come Statement
h 2010

4]

2010 2009
Note £000 £000
interest and similar iIncome 4 92,735 243,842
interest expense and smilar charges 4 (66,456) (195046)
Net interest income 26,279 48,796
Fee and cormmission income 5 381,673 362,306
Fee and cormmission exper:nse 5 {29,558) (21,502)
Dwdend ncome e K O ley7
Net rading ncome 7 (708) o
Farr value moverments T T T g T T T T T T e
Gains less losses from available-for-sale T
financial assets 1916 (4.537)
Gain on extinguishment of financal liabilities 24 133,748 -
Cther operating income 31 10671 44913
Total operating income 525,851 446,051
Impairment losses on financial assets 13,14 (57.570) (83,225}
Net operatng income 468,281 362,826
Operating expenses 9,10 (326.221) (305.292)'
Deprecation and amortisaton 20,21 (6706) (7.361)
Share of post-tax profit of associated undertakings 8 2564 369
Profit before income tax 137,918 50,542
income tax e><|;ense ’ ) I (l.7683 (9.017)
Profit for the financial year * 136,150 41,525

* of the £136,150,000 (2009 £41,525,000) profit for the financial year, £111,603,000 (2009 £30,985,000)
15 atrributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent company and £24,547,000 (2009 £10,540,000) 1s

aunbutable to non-controlling interests

The nates on pages 48 to | 12 form an integral

part of these financial statements

N M Rothschild & Sons Limated
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N M Rathschild & Sons Lirted
Regisiered Number 925279

Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2010

2010 2009
Note £'000 £'000
Profit for the financial year 136,150 41,525
Other comprehensve mcome o S
Available-for-sale investments
Change n far value of assets classified as available-for-sale 72988 (123,970)
Net change m far value of avalable-for-sale financal assets
transferred to Income statement 2169 35721
Amortisation of farr value of reclassme_dm assets 13 10675 9.806'
Cash flow hedges
Effectve portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 1,631 (2724)
Other items recognised directly in equity
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension funds 26 (73.795) (51.850)
Exchange differences on translation <;f—fonewgn aperations - 2391 13358
Income tax on other comprehensive iIncome I (3,659 37877
Other comprehensive income for the financial year,
net of income tax 12,400 (81,782)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the financial year 148,550 (40.257)
Aturbutable to
- Ordinary shareholders of the parent 124,656 {56927)
— Non-controlling interests 23,894 16670
148,550 (40,257)

The notes on pages 48 to 112 form an integral part of these financial staternents




Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2010

2010 2009

Note £000 £'000
Assets 43
Cash and balances at central banks 810,857 571,985
Loans and recewvables to banks -
included n cash and cash equivalents 12 171613 493816
Leans and recevables to banks - other 13 1,762 2977
Loans and recevables to custcmers K] 1,087,835 | 468947
Avallable-for-sale financial assets |4 760813 1,046,715
Derwative financial instruments I5 17,147 8,797
Other assets 16 143015 149,427
Nen-current assets held for sale |7 38033 30,536
Current tax assets 5905 15,299
Investments in associated undertakings 18 37763 37.281
Intangible assets 20 14,703 14,852
Property, plant and equipment 21 19954 17,946
Deferred tax assets 25 LT3 101,455
Total assets 3,231,173 3,961,040
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 279505 449974
Due to custormers 1,236,490 663 157
Repurchase agreements 208,378 832808
Derwative financial instruments |5 20,741 38,211
Debt secunties in issue 22 465,309 285139
Liabilities related t¢ non-current assets held for sale |7 35,592 28653
Other habilities 23 131,231 72,285
Current tax habilies 13,221 9,152
Accruals and deferred income 303,449 293995
Subordinated habilities 24 - 271014
Total labiities 2,694,516 3,644,388
Equity
Share capital 3 57.655 57,655
Share premium account 97936 97936
Retaned earnings 278,804 252290
Other reserves (50427 (116579)
Total shareholders’ equity attributable to ordinary shareholders 383,968 291,302
Non-controlling interests 32 152,689 25350
Total equity 536,657 316,652
Total equity and liabiities 3231173 3,961,040

The accounts on pages 41 to 112 were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on s behalf by

Andrew ;;1;;am, ;roup gmana: Director

27 July 2010

The notes on pages 48 to | 12 form an integral part of these financial statements

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
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N M Rothschild & Sons Limned
Registered Number 925279

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2010

Avallable- Noan-
Share Share  Retained Translation for-sale Hedging controling Total
Capital premwum  Earnings reserve reserve reserve  Interests Equity
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At | April 2009 57,655 97936 252290 11,603 (125,651) (2,531) 25,350 316,652
Total comprehensive
income for the penod - - 58,504 3044 61934 1,174 238%4  [48550
Reclassificavon of
perpetual instruments - - - - - - 124335 124335
Purchase of non-controlling interest - - {1990) - - - (1,024  (30149)
Diadends - - (30000) - - - (10184) (40 184)
Interest on perpetual nstruments - - - - - - (13447) (13447
—Tax thereon - - - - - - 3765 3765
At 31 March 2010 57 655 97,936 278,804 14647  (63717) (1357} 152689 536657
At | Apnl 2008 55,155 97936 258639 4375  (69.806) {570) 1797 347,526
Total comprehensive
income for the penod - - (6,349) 7228 (55845) (1961} 16670 (40257)
Ordinary share capral 1ssued 2500 - - - - - - 2500
Reclassification from
associated undertaking - - - - - - 25,941 25941
Purchase of non-controlling interest - - - - - - {712} 712)
Deadends - - - - - - (18346} (iB346)
At 31 March 2009 57,655 97936 252,290 11603 (125651) (2.53]) 25,350 316652

The notes on pages 48 to |12 form an integral part of these financial statements




Company Balance Sheet

At 31 March 2010

2010 2009

Note £000 £'000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 810,847 570913
Lt;)ans and recew;blfm:suto banks - o A ) )
included in cash and cash equivalents 13 97714 396473
Loans and recenvables ta customers S i 3 ) I_.l 03,382 ) C 1515102
Avalble-forsale francal assets 14 758950 1045915
Denwative financial instruments 15 17147 9};{
Other assets 16 78315 90,938
Current tax assets - 11,561
Shares in subsidiary undertakings 35 43,807 40,794
rwestments n assocated undertakngs 18 3792 37692
Investments in ;ucnwnt ventures T i 5375 ) i 5.3:/5
Property plant and equipment 21 7.787 7028
Deferred tax assets S 25 ALY 89,695
Total assets 3,060,808 3,821,283
Lizbilittes
Beposits by banks 277,977 447,934
Due to customers 1,678,608 1,474,495
Repurchase agreements 208378 832,808
IS;nvatlve ﬁn;ncral instruments T T s 20,645 o 37,708
Debt securities in 1ssue o 2 89.091 ) 271,365
Other labilities 23 109,059 32,301
Current tax |labI|ItIES ’ ) 224 -
Accruals and deferred meome 224308 212099
S_ubondlnated labilities 24 - 271014
Total liabilities 2,608,290 3,579,724
Equity
Share capital 33 57,655 57,655
Share premium account N i 97936 97936
Perpetual mstruments - 4.3 124335 -
Retained earmnings 238,690 214548
Other reserves ) ) T (66098) (128.580)
Total equity 452,518 241,559
Total equity and liabilities 3,060,808 3,821,283

The acdounts

Andrew Didham, Group Finance Director

27 July 2010

The notes on pages 48 to |12 form an integral part of these financial statements

cs 4] 1o 112 were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on 1ts behalf by
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N M Rothschild & Sons Limted
Regastered Number $25279

Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2010

Available-
Share Share Perpetual Retained for-sale Hedgnng Total
capital premium Instruments  earmings  reserve  reserve  equity
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At | Apnl 2009 57,655 97,936 — 214,548 (126,049) (2,531) 244,559
Profit for the financial year - - - 117036 - - 117036
Other comprehensive iIncome
Awvailable-for-sale investments
Change in fair value of assets
classified as avalable-for-sale - - - 72,119 - 72119
Net change in far value of avallable-forsale
financial assets transferred to income statement - - - - 2,169 - 2169
Amortisation of far value of
reclassified financial assets - — - - 10,675 - 10675
Cash flow hedges
Effective porticn of changes In
far value of cash flow hedges ~ - - - - 1,631 1631
Grher items
Actuaral losses on defined
benefit pension funds - - - {73908) - - (73,908)
Income tax on other comprehensive income - - 20,696 (23 655) {457y (3416)
Reclassification of perpetual instruments - - 124,335 - - - 124,335
Drvidends paid - - {30,000) - — (30000)
Interest on perpetual instruments - - - (13447 - - (13,447)
—Tax thereon - - - 3,765 - - 3765
At 31 March 2010 57,655 97,936 124,335 238690 (64,741) (1,357) 452518
At | Apnl 2008 55,185 97,936 - 225982 (71,233) (570) 307,270
Profit for the financial year - - - 25900 - - 25900
Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale mvestments
Change n fair value of assets classified
as avalable-forsale - - - - {112655) — {112,655)
Net change in fair value of avallable-for-sale
financial assets transferred to income statement - - - - 25915 - 25915
Amortisation of far value of
reclassified financial assets - - - - 9,806 - 2806
Cash flow hedges
Effective portion of changes in
far value of cash flow hedges - - - - - (@7 (@7
Other items
Actuarial losses on defined
benefit pension funds - - - (51850) - — (51,850}
Income tax on other comprehensive ncome - — T -~ 14516 22118 763 37,397
Ordinary share caprtal 1ssued 2,500 - - ' - - - 2500
At 31 March 2009 57.655 97,936 — 214,548 (126,04%) (2.531) 241,539

The notes on pages 48 to |12 form an integral part of these financial statements




Cash Flow Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2010

47

2010 2010 2009 2009
Group  Company Group  Company
Note £000 £'000 £000 £000
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax for the financial year 137,918 106,435 50,542 20,807
Adjustments to reconale net profit to cash flow from operating activities
Non-cash tems included in net profit and other adjustments
Depreciation and amortisation 6,706 3,252 7361 3,486
Share of operating proﬁ{ of assocrates (2.564) - (369) -
Fair value movements 8 - - {6 746) (6,746}
Impairment of finanaial and other assets {net of recovery) 57570 58029 83225 82585
Loss on disposal of subsidiares - - 797 -
Unrealised exchange (gains)/losses — non-operating assets (e {12931) 43,495 31,542
Gan on extinguishment of financial labilities (133748)  (133,748) - -
Profit on disposal of investment securrties {19186) (1.316) - -
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (28) (48) (33732 (10
(85.591) (87.362) 94,031 110,857
Net decrease/(increase) in operating assets
Net due to/from banks (excluding cash equivalents) (178887) {169550) (202442) (204,452)
Derwative financial nstruments (7.350) (7,350) 1415 1,40C
Available-for-sale financal assets 368,10% 368,302 862271 862462
Loans and recewvables to customers 329,084 359233 (55.572) (123433)
Accrued income, prepaid expenses and other assets | 6,385 12,023 92 101 59422
517,341 562,618 697,773 595,399
Net {decrease)/ncrease in operating habilities
Customer deposits 573333 204113 (158607) (74,395)
Repurchase agreements (624430)  (624430) (2806%1) (2806%1)
Dervatwve financial instruments (15839) (15432) (5518} (5694)
Debt securities in issue (519.230) (182274) (2542%4) (2512449)
Accrued expenses and other habilties (5.517) 15059 (129,238) {1229349)
Income taxes received/(paid) 2485 13,239 (10,364) 6,606
(589,198) (589.725) (838712) (729.352)
Net cash flow from operating acovities® {19,530} (8,034) 3,634 {2,289)
Cash flow from/(used in) mvesting activities
Acquisitton/increase in stake of subsidharies, assotiates’ and joint ventures (2591) (3015} (8127) (10885)
Cash recognised on reclassification of associate to subsidiary - - 62,421 -
Dwidends receved from associates 1511 - 1,814 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries - - 36820 64
Purchase of fixed assets (8.696) (4,023) {4417) {1 590)
Disposal of fixed assets 373 6l 886 32
Net cash flow (used m)/from invesung actviues {9,803) {6,977) 89,397 {12,379)
Cash flow {used m})/from financing acuvities
Cash from issuance of ordinary shares - - 2500 2500
Dividends and interest on perpetual debt ’ {43447) ) (43,447) - -
Distributions to non-controlling interests ’ (10184) - (18,346) -
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing acevities {53.631) {43,447} (15.846) 2,500
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivatents (82,964) {58.458) 77.185 (12,168)
Cash and cash equivalents at | Apnl 1065413 966998 988,228 979 166
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 30 982,449 908,540 1,065,413 966,998

* Group cash paid and received for interest during 2010 was £58 136000 (2009 £209 146000) and £95 832000 (2009 £254 996 000)
respectively Company cash paid and received for interest dunng 2010 was £55 201 000 (2009 £208733,000) and £82,319 000

(2009 £241 631 000) respecuvely
The notes on pages 48 to | 12 form an integral part of these finanaial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)
For the year ended 31 March 2010

I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

N M Rothschild & Sons Limrted (“the Company”) 1s a company incorporated 1in the United Kingdom
The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and 1ts subsidiaries and joincy-
controlled entities {together referred to as “the Group”) and equity account for the Group's interests in
assoclates The Parent Company financial statements present informartion abour the Company as a
separate enuty and not about its group The accounting pohcies of the Group set out 1n this note also
apply to the Parent Company financial statements unless otherwise stated

Several new standards and interpretations have been adopied for the first ume in these consolidated
financial statements

The Group applies revised [AS 1 Presentauion of Financial Statements (2007) As a result, the primary
statements include a Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statements of Changes

i Equity

Comparative information has been re-presented so that tt alse 1s in conformity with the revised standard
Since the change 1n accounting policy only impacts presentation aspects, thete is no tmpact on earnings

The Group has applied Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments (Amendments wo [FRS 7),
1ssued in March 2009, that require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and liquidity nisk
in respect of financial instruments

The amendments require that fair value measurement disclosures use a three-tevel fair value hierarchy
that reflects the sigmificance of the inputs used in measuring fair values of financial instruments  Speafic
disclosures are required when fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3 (sigruficant unobservable
inputs) 1n the fair value hierarchy The amendments require that any significant transfers berween Level
1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy be disclosed separacely, distinguishing between transfers into and
out of each level Furthermore, changes 1n valuation techniques from one period to another, including
the reasons therefore, are required to be disclosed for each class of financial instruments

Further, the defimition of hiquidity risk has been amended and 1t 15 now defined as the risk that an enuty
will encounter difficulty 1n meeting obligations associated with financial habilies char are sewded by
delivering cash or another financial asset

The amendments require disclosure of a matunty analysis for non-dervative and derivauve financial
Liabilities, but contractual maturities are required to be disclosed for derivauve financial liabilies only
when conrractual marunues are essential for an underscanding of the nming of cash flows For issued
financial guarantee contracts, the amendments require the maximum amount of the guarantee to be
disclosed 1n the earliest period 1n which the guarantee could be called

A pumber of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretanions are not effectve for the year
ended 31 March 2010, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements

Standards, amendments and interpretations endorsed by the EU
Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised 2008) incorporates the following changes that are likely
to be relevant to the Group’s operations

~  The definition of a business has been amended to clanfy that it can include a set of activities and
assers that are not being operated as a business, as long as an acquirer 15 capable of operaung the set

as a business,

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

Repustered Number 925279




Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

~  All business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisitton method {previously the 49
purchase method),

—  Subsequent recognition of deferred rax assets acquired in a business combination that did not sausfy
the critena for recognition at the acquisition date would be recognised 1n profit or loss,

—  Any non-controlling interests will be measured ar either fair value, or at 1ts proporuecnate 1nrerest
m the identifiable assets and liabilities of an acquiree, on a transaction-by-transacuion basis,

Rewvised IFRS 3, which becomes mandatory for the Group’s 2011 consolidated financial statements, will
be applied prospectively and therefore there will be no impact on prior periods 1n the Group’s 2011
consolidated financial statements

Revised IAS 27 Consclidated and Separate Financial Statements (amended 2008) requires accounting for
changes 1n ownership interests 1n a subsidiary that occur withour loss of control, to be recogmsed as an
equuty transaction When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, any interest retained in the former
subsidiary will be measured at fair value with the gain or loss recognised in profic or loss The
amendments to IAS 27, which becomes mandatory for the Group’s 2011 consolidated financial
statements, are not expected to have a significant impact on the consolidated finanaal statements

Amendments to IAS 39, Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items
clanfies the application of existing principles that determine whether specific nisks or portions of cash
flows are eligible for designation 1n a hedging relationship The amendments will become mandatory for
the Group’s 2011 consolidared finanaal statements, with retrospective applicauon required The Group
15 currently 1n the process of evaluating the potential effect of this amendment

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued by the IASB but not endorsed by the EU

IFRS 9 Financial instruments, published on 12 November 2009 as part of phase 1 of the [ASB's
comprehensive project to replace IAS 39, deals with classification and measurement of financial assets
The requirements of this standard represent a sigmificant change from the existng requirements 1n IAS
39 1n respect of financial assets The standard contains two primary measurement categories for financial
assers amortised cost and fair value A financial asset would be measured at amortised cost 1f it 15 held
within a business model whase objective 15 to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
the asset’s contractual terms give rise on specified dates o cash flows thar are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding Al other financial assets would be measured at fair value The
standard eliminates the existing IAS 39 categonies of held to marunty, avaiable for sale and loans and
recervables For an investment in an equity nstrument which 1s not held for trading, the standard
permits an irrevocable election, on 1mnal recogmnion, on an indmidual share-by-share basis, to present
all fair value changes from the investment 1n other comprehensive income No amount recogmised n
other comprehensive income would ever be reclassified to profit or loss at a later date However,
dividends on such investments are recogmsed 1n profit or loss, rather than other comprehensive income,
as they clearly represent a partial recovery of the cost of the investment Investments 1n equity mstruments
in respect of which an entity does not elect to present fair value changes 1n other comprehensive income
would be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss

The srandard requires that dertvatives embedded 1n contracts with a host that is a financial asser within
the scope of the standard are not separated, instead the hybrid financial instrument 15 assessed n 1ts
entirery as to whether it should be measured at amorused cost or farr value

N M Rothschild & Sons Limied
Regisiered Number 925279
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

[.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The standard 15 effecuve for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 Earler application
1s permitted

The Group 1s currently in the process of evaluaung the potenual effect of this standard Given the
nature of the Group’s operauons, this standard 1s expected to have a significant 1mpact on the Group’s
financial statements

Basis of preparation

Both the Parent Company and the Group financial statements have been prepared n accordance wath
Internatienal Finanaial Reportng Standards (“IFRS™) and Internanonal Financial Reporung Interpretations
Commurtee (“IFRIC”) interpretations endorsed by the European Umion (EU”) and with those
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporung under IFRS The financial
statements are prepared under the historical cost convenuon, except that available-for-sale nvestments,
financial assets held for trading and all derivauve contraces are stated at their fair value The preparation
of financial statements 1n accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimares
It also requires management to exercise judgement n applying the accounung policies Areas where
management judgement 15 parucularly significant include the valuation of financial assets and habilicies,
impairment of financial assets, pension cbligations and the recoverability of deferred rax assets

The principal accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied 1n the presentauon of the
Group financial statements

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group are made up to 31 March 2010 and consolidate the audited
financial sratements of the Company and s subsidiary undertakings In order to avoid undue delay 1n
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the finanaal statements of certain subsidiary
undertakings are made up te 31 December each year

Subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary underralungs are all enuues {including special purpose entities “SPEs”) over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operaung policics, generally as a resulr of a shareholding of
more than one half of the voung nghts, so as to obtain benefits from the activiues of the enury In
assessing control, potential voting nights that are currently exercisable or converuble are taken 1nto
account SPEs are consolidated when the substance of the relationship between the Group and the SPE
indicates control by the Group Potential indicators of control include an assessmenr of the nsks and
benefits relating to the SPE’s acuvities Subsidiary undertakings are fully consolidated from the date on
which the Group acquires control, and cease to be consolidated from the date thar control ceases

The Group uses the purchase method of accounang for the acquisiion of subsidiary undertakings The
cost of an acqusition 15 measured as the fair value of the assets given as consideraton, shares 1ssued or
liabiliies undertaken at the date of acquisition, plus any costs directly attributable to the acquisituon The
excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net idenufiable assers and fair value of
conungent habilities of the subsidiary undertaking acquired 1s recorded as goodwill All inter-company
transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between group companies are
eliminared on consolidation The accounting policies used by subsidiary undercakings are consistent with
the policies adopted by the Group
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation {continued)

The financial statements of the Group’s subsidiary undertakings are made up to a darte not earlier than three
months before the balance sheet date and are adjusted, where necessary, for any matenal transactions or
events that occur between the two dates

In the Parent Company financial statements, investments 1n subsidiary undertakings are carried at cost
less any impairment losses

Associated undertakings

An associated undertaking 1s an enuty 1in which the Group has significant influence, but not control,
over the operating and financial management policy decisions This 1s generally demonstrated by the
Group holding 1n excess of 20 per cent, but no more than 50 per cent, of the voring rights

The Group’s investments in associated undertakings are immally recorded at cost Subsequently they are
increased or decreased by the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profit or loss, or by other movements
reflected directly 1n the equity of the associated undertakings When the Group's share of losses in an
assoctated undertaking equals or exceeds 1ts interest 1n the associated undertaking, the Group does not
recogmise furcher losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the assocrated
undertaking Positive goodwill ansing on the acquisition of an associated undertaking ts included in the
cost of the investment (net of any accumulated 1impairment loss)

The Group’s share of the post-tax results of associated undertakings 1s based on financial statemnents made up
to a date not earlier than three months before the balance sheet dare, adjusted ro conform with the accounung
policies of the Group and for any materal transactions ot events that occur berween the two dates

In the Parent Company financial statements, investments 1n associated undertakings are carried at cost

Joint ventures

A jointly conrtrolled ennty 1s a joint venture that involves the establishment of an entity 1n which cach
venturer has an interest Jointly controlled entities are consalidated using the proporuonal consolidanion
method, under which the Group’s financial starements include wts share of the joint venture’s assets,
liabilities, income and expenses on a line-by-line basis Proporuonal consolidanion 1s discentinued when
the Group no longer exercises joinr control over the ennty

Going concern

The Group has considerable resources and continues to generate new profirable business It 1s well placed
to manage 1ts business risk for the forseeable future despite an uncertain economic outlook and,
therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

Non-current assets held for sale and related liabihties

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale of their carrysng amount wall be recovered through a sale
transacuon rather than through conunuing use This condition 1s regarded as mer only when the sale 1s
highly probable and expected to be completed within one year from classificanon Non-current assets
held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying value and fair value less costs to sell
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign exchange

The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, which is the Company’s functonal
currency and the Group’s reportng currency ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's enuties are measured using their functional currency The funcuonal currency 1s the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates

Income statements and cash flows of foreign operations are translated mto the Group’s reperung currency at
average exchange rates for the period where this rate approximares to the foreign exchange rates ruling ar the
date of the rransacuons and their balance sheets are translated at the exchange rate at cthe end of the period
Exchange differences ansing from the translacion of the net invesument in foreign subsidiary and associared
underrakings and joint ventures are taken to shareholders’ equity On disposal of a foreign operation, these
translation differences are recognsed 1n the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction
Gains and losses resulung from the settlement of such transactions, and from the translanon ar period end
exchange rates of monetary wems that are denorunated in foreign currencies, are recogmised 1n the income
statement, except when deferred in equuty as qualifying cash flow hedges Non-monetary assets and liabilinies
thar are measured 1n terms of historical cost 1n a foreign currency are wranslated using the exchange rave ar the
date of the transaction Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated 1n foreign currencies that are stated
at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates when the fair value was determined

Translation differences on equattes classified as at fair value through profit or loss are reported as parc of
the farr value gain or loss in the income statement Translation differences on equittes classified as
available-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale reserve 1n equiry

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisiion of a foreign enury are treared as assets and
liabilities of the foreign enuity and are cranslated at the closing rate

Dervative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Denvatives
Dervauves are entered into for trading and fisk management purposes Dervauves used for nsk
management are accounted for as hedges where they qualify as such under IAS 39

Dervauves are ininally recognused ar fair value and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised 1n the income statement except that, where derivatves qualify for hedge accounting,
recogrmuion of any gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged

Hedge accounung

The Group may apply erther fair value or cash flow hedge accounung when transactions meet the crirena
for hedge accounung treatment set out 1 IAS 39 At the inception of the hedge, the Group assesses
whether the hedging derivatives meer the effectiveness critenia of [AS 39 1n offsetring changes 1n the fair
value or cash flows of the hedged items The Group then documents the relationship berween the hedging
instrument and rhe hedged 1rem [t also records its risk management objectives, 1ts strategy for undertaking
the hedge transaction and the methods used to assess the effecuveness of the hedging relanonship

After incepuion, effectiveness 1s tested on an on-going basis Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when 1t
1s derermined that a dernvative has ceased to be highly effective, or when the derivatve or the hedged
wwem 15 derecognised, or when the forecast rransaction 15 no longer expected to occur
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Denwvative financial instruments and hedge accounting {(continued)

Fair value hedge accounting
Changes in value of fair value hedge derivanives are recorded 1n the income statement, together with fair
value changes to the underlying hedged item in respect of the nsk being hedged

If the hedge ne longer meets the criteria for hedge accounnng, the difference between the carrying value
of the hedged 1tem on termuinauon of the hedging relavonship and the value at which it would have been
carried had the hedge never existed 1s amorused to the income statement over the residual pertod ro matunty
based on a recaleulated effective tnterest rate Where the hedged em 1s an available-for-sale equuy
security, the adjustment remains 1n retained earmings unul the disposal of the equury secunry

Cash flow hedge accounting
Changes 1n the fair value of the effecuve portion of denvauves designated as cash flow hedges are
recogmsed 1n equity The gain or loss relanng to the ineffective portion 1s recognised in the income
statement Amounts accumulated 1n equity are recycled to the income statement when the item being
hedged umpacts profit or loss

When hedge accounung 1s discontnued, any cumulanive gain or loss 1n equity remains in equity and 1s
only recognised 1n the income statement when the forecast transaction 1s recognised in the income
statement When the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulauve balance 1n equuty
15 immediately transferred to the income statement

Embedded derivatives

Some hybnd contracts contain both a derivatuve and a non-dertvative component In such cases, the
denivative component 1s termed an embedded dervative Where the economic charactenstics and risks of
embedded derivatves are not closely related to those of the host contract, and where the hybrid contract
1self 15 not carried at fair value chrough profit or loss, the embedded derivative 1s separated and recorded
at fair value with gains and losses being recognised 1n the income statement

The Group’s investments 1n collateralised debt obligations (“CIDOs”) which take credit exposure 1n the
form of credit denvatives are treated as concaining embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host CDO contract The change 1n fair value of these “synthetc” CDO contracts attributable to the
credit derivatives 1s recognised 1n the income statement

Interest income and expense

Interest receivable and payable represents interest arising out of banking activities, including lending and
deposit-taking business, interest on related hedging transactions and interest on debrt securities Interest
on financial tnstruments, except those classified as held for trading or designated at fair value through
profit or loss, 1s recognised as nterest income or expense 1 the income statement using the effective

interest rate method

The effective interest rate 1s the rate thar exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows of a financial
mnstrument to 1ts net carrying amount It 1s used to calculate the amorused cost of a financial asset or a
financial liabihicy and to allocace the interest over the relevant peniod (usually the expected life of the
instrument) When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group considers all contractual terms of the
financial 1nstrument {for example, prepayment options) but does nor consider future credir losses The
calculanion 1ncludes any premiums or discounts, as well as all fees and transaction costs that are an
inregral part of the financial asse
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fee and commussion income

The Group earns fee and commusston income from services provided ro clients Fee income from adwvisory
and other services can be drvided 1nto two broad categories fees earned from services that are provided
over a pertod of ume, which are recognised over the period 1n which the service 1s provided, and fees that
are earned on completion of a significant act or on the occurrence of an event, such as the compleuon
of a transaction, which are recognised when the act 1s completed or the event occurs

Fees and commussions thar are an ntegral part of a loan, and loan commitment fees for loans char are
likely to be drawn down, are deferred {together with related direct costs) and recognised over the life of
the loan as an adjustment to the effectve incerest rate

Trading income

Trading income arises from movements 1n the fair value of financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated ar fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and habilities

Financial assets and liabilicies are recognised on trade date and derecognused on either trade dare, of
apphcable, or on maturity or repayment

On 1minal recognition, 1AS 39 requures that financial assets be classified into the following categories at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available for sale
The Group does not hold any assets that are classified as held-to-maturity investments and has not
designated any assets at fair value through profit or loss at incepuon

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading (1 ¢ primanly acquired for cthe purpose of selling
in the short term) and derivauves thar are not designated as cash flow or net investment hedges These
financial assets are innally recognised at fair value, with transaction costs recorded immediately in the
income statement and are subsequently measured at fair value Gains and losses anising from changes in
fair value or on derecognition are recognised 1n the income statement as net trading income Interest and
dividend income from finanaial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1s recogmised 1n trading income

Loans and recervables

Loans and receivables are non-dernvauve financial assets with fixed or determinable payments thar are not
quoted 1n an acuve market Loans which are intended o be sold in the shore term are classified as held
for trading and are recorded at fair value through profit or loss

Loans and recetvables are iniually recorded ar fair value, including any transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amorused cost using the effective interest rate method Gains and losses ansing
on derecognition of loans and recervables are recognised in other operatng income

Financial assets that have been reclassified as loans and recewvables out of the available-for-sale category
are reclassified at fair value on the date of reclassification and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and habihities (continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Avatlable-for-sale investments comprise non-derivative financial assets thar are either designated as available
for sale on imtial recognition or are not classified into the categories described above Available-for-sale
investments are tnutially recognised at fair value, induding direct and incremental transaction costs, and
are subsequently measured at fair value

Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fatr value of available-for-sale financial assets are recogrused
in equity unal the financial asse 1s sold, at which ume the cumulauve gain or loss 1s transferred to the
income statement Interest (determined using the effective interest rate method), impairment losses and
cranslation differences on monetary 1tems are recognised 1n the mmcome statement as they anse
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised 1n the income statement when the
Group’s nght to recerve payment 1s established

A financial asset classified as available for sale thatr would have met the defininon of loans and receivables
may be reclassified out of the available-for-sale caregory to the loans and receivables category where the
Group has the intention and the ability to hold the asset for the foreseeable future or unul marunty

Financial Liabilities
Exceprt for dervatives, which are classified as ar fair value threugh profit or loss en imual recognition, all
financial hiabilities are carried at amortused cost using the effecuive interest rate method

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make speafied payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss 1t incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, 1n
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee liabilities are 1mitially recognised at
fair value, and the 1mual fair value 1s amorused over the life of the guarantee The guarantee hability 15
subsequently carnied at the higher of the amorused amount and the expected present value of any
expected payment (when a payment under the guarantee has become probable)

Where one Group company enters intoe financal guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other
companies within the Group, that company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts
for them as such In this respect, the Group company treats the guarantee contract as a conungent liability
until such tme as it becomes probable that 1t will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asser when

1 the contractual nghts to cash flows ansing from the financial asset have expired, or

1 1t cransfers the financial asser including substanually all of the nsks and rewards of the
ownership of the asser, or

ut e transfers the financial asset, netther retaining nor transferring substantially all the nisks and
rewards of the asset, bur no longer retains control of the asset
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Determunation of fair value

The fair value of quoted 1nvestments 1n acuve markets 1s based on current bid prices For other financial
assets, the Group establishes fair value by using appropriate valuation techmques These include the use
of recent arm’s length transacuons, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation methods commonly used by market paruncipants For certain investments, the valuation may
be denved from quotatons recerved from various sources Where the market 15 1lliquid, the quotanions
may not be supported by prices from actual market transacuons The fair value of short term debtors and
creditors 1s materially the same as invoice value

Securnitisation transactions
The Group has entered into funding arrangements with lenders in order to finance specific financial assers

In general, both the assets and the related Liabilities from these transacrions are held on the Group’s
balance sheet However, to the extent that the risks and returns associated with the financial instruments
have been transferred to a third party, the assets and liabilities are derecognised 1n whole or in part

Interests i securitised financial assets may be retained or taken in the form of senior or subordinated
tranches of debrt securities, or other residual interests Such retained interests are primanly recorded as
available-for-sale assets

Impairment of financial assets

Assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s objective evidence that a
financial asser or group of financaial assets 15 impaired

Impairment losses are incurred 1if there 1s objecuve evidence of imparrment as a result of one or more
events occurring after inutial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on
the esumated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated Objectve evidence that a financial asset or group of assets 1s impatred includes observable data
about the following loss events

1 signtficant financial difficuley of the 1ssuer,

1 a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency 1n interest or principal repayment,

uw  granung to the borrower a concession, for economuc or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulry, thar the lender would not otherwise consider,

v 1t becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruprcy or other financial reorganisation

Impairment of loans and recewvables

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually sigmificant and individually or collecuvely for financial assets that are not individually
significant Impairment losses are calculated on a collecuve basis in respect of losses thar have been
ncurred but not yet idennfied on loans thar are subject to individual assessment for impairmenc and for
homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered individually significant If no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asser, 1t 15 included 1n a collective assessment
for imparrment with other assets with simular nsk characrensucs
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 15
measured as the difference berween the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s onginal effective interest rate The carrying amount of the
asset 15 reduced, the loss being recognised in the income starement

The calculation of the present value of the esumated future cash flows of a financial asset reflects the cash
flows that may result from scheduled interest payments, principal repayments, or other payments due,
including hquidation of collateral where available In esumaung these cash flows, management makes
judgments about a counterparty’s financial situauen and the fair value of any underlying collateral or
guarantees 1n the Group’s favour Each impaired asset 15 assessed on us ments, and the workour strategy
and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are reviewed by the Credit Comumuttee on a quarrerly
basis The methodology and assumpuions used for esimaung both the amount and the nming of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly ro reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience

Collectively assessed credit risk allowances cover credit fosses inherent in portfolios of financial assets with
stmular economig charactenstics where there 15 objecuve evidence to suggest thar they contain impaized
assets but the individual impaired items cannot yet be identfied For the purposes of a collective evaluanon
of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credic nisk charactenistics Future cash flows
are estimared on the basis of historical loss experience These esumares are subject to regular review and
adjusted 1o reflect the effects of current condiions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss
expertence 1s based and to remove the effects of conditions in the hustorical peniod that do not exist currentdy

The accuracy of the allowances made depends on how accurately the Group esnmates future cash flows
for specific counterparty allowances and provisions and the model assumptions and parameters used in
decermining collective allowances While this necessanly involves judgment, the Group believes thar s
allowances and provisions are reasonable and supportable

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income 1s recognised using the orniginal effective interest rate which was used o
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss

If, 1n a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related to
an objective event occurring after the impairment was recogrused (for example, being awarded a new contract
that materially enhances future cashflows), the previously recogmsed impatrment loss 1s reversed by adjusung
the allowance for loan impairment The amount of the reversal 15 recogmised 1n the income starement

When a loan 15 deemed uncollectable, 1t 1s written off against the related allowance for loan impairment
Recoveres recerved 1n respect of loans previously written off are recorded as a decrease 1n the impairment losses
on loans and advances and are recorded in the income statement n the year in which the recovery was made

Loans subject ro individual 1mpairment assessment whose terms have been renegonated, and which
would have been past due or impaired had they not been renegoniated, are reviewed to determine
whether they are inpaired or past due

Impairment of available-for-sale assets
Available-for-sale assets are assessed ar each balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets 15 tmpaired, which requires judgement

by management
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l.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

58 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For equuty shares clasaified as available-for-sale, a sigmificant or prolenged dechine in the fair value of the
security below 1ts cost 1s considered evidence of impairment If any such evidence exists, the cumulatve
loss 15 removed from equity and recognsed in the 1ncome statement If, 1n a subsequent period, the fair
value on an equiry share classified as available-for-sale increases, the impairment loss 1s not reversed
through the 1ncome statement, but remains recorded 1n equuty

Impairment of available-for-sale debt securities 1s based on the same criteria as for all other financial
assets 1F1n a subsequent period the fatr value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objecuvely related 1o an event occurning after the impairment loss was recognised
1n the income statement, the impairment loss 1s reversed through the income statement

The loss recogmsed 1n the mcome statement 15 the difference between the acquisinon cost and current
fair value, less any impairmenc loss on thar financial asset previously recognised 1n the income statement

Debt/equity classification

Under IFRS the critical feature in differentiating a debe instrument from an equity instrument 1s the
existence of a contractual obligation of the Group ta deliver cash (or another financial asset) to another entty
Where there 1s no such contractual obligation, the Group will classify the financial mstrument as equaty,
otherwise 1t will be classified as a liability and carried at amorused cost Under IFRS the contractual terms
of the transaction takes precedence over its economuc substance 1n determining how 11 should be classified

Goodwill and intangible assets

1 Goodwill in a subsidiary or an associated undertaking represents the excess, at the date of acquisiuon,
of an acquisiuion’s cost over the fair value of the Group’s share of ner idenufiable assets acquired
[dentifiable intangible assets are those which can be sold separately or which arise from legal nights
regardless of whether those nights are separate

When the Group increases 1ts stake 1n an entty which it already controls, any difference berween
the price paid for the additional stake and the increase 1n the net assets acquired by the Group s
recognused directly 1n equiry

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 1s tested annually for
impatrment, or more frequently when circumstances indicate that 1ts carrying amounr 1s too
high Goodwill 15 allocated to cash-generaung units for the purposes of impairment testng If the
net present values of the cash-generanng unus’ forecast cash flows are insufficient to support their
carrying value, then the goodwill 1s impaired Impairment losses on goodwill are recognised 1n
the income statement and are not reversed

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entry include the carrying amount of goodwil! relating to

the entity sold

Negattve goodwill in an associated or subsidiary undertaking represents the excess of net idenufiable
assets acquired over the acquisition cost, and 15 recognised immedsately in the income statement

N M Rothschild & 5ons Limited
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill and intangible assets {continued)

i Intangible assets compnise acquired intellectual property nghts, which are carned at cost less
accumulared amorusanion and impairment losses The costs are amornsed on the basis of an
estumated useful life of 10 years Inwellectual property nghts are reviewed at each reporung date to
determine whether there 1s any objective evidence of impairment If such evidence exists, an
impairment test 1s performed

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment 15 stated at cost or deemed cost (where, on transinon ro IFRS, the
Group elected to treat the fair value of an 1tem of properry, planc and equipment at the IFRS wansition
date as 1ts deemed cost, as permitted under IFRS 1 First-time Adoprion of Internanonal Financial
Reporung Standards) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Cost includes expenditure
thart 15 directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the asser

Land 15 not depreciated Depreciation on other assets 1s calculated using the straight-line method to write
down the cost of assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows

Computer equipment 2-5 years
Cars 3-5 years
Fixtures and fittings 3-10 years
Leaschold improvements  4-15 years

The assets’ ressdual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, ar each balance sheer date

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts These gains
and losses are recogmised 1n the income statement

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

At each balance sheet date, or more frequently where events or changes in arrcumstances dictate, property,
plant and equipment 1s assessed for indications of impairment If such indicanons are present, these assers
are subject to an impairment review If impaired, the carrying values of assets are written down by the
amount of any impairment and the loss 1s recognised 1n the inceme statement 1n the pernod 1in which 1t
occurs A previously recognised impatrment loss relating to a fixed asset may be reversed when a change
in crcumstances leads to a change 1n the esumates used to determine the fixed asset’s recoverable
amount The carrying amount of the fixed asset 1s only increased up to the amount that 1t would have
been had the onginal impairment not been recogrused
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Finance and operating leases
Where the Group 1s the lessor

Finance leases

When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments 1s recogrused as a
recervable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the recervable 1s recognised
as unearned finance income Lease income 1s recogmsed in interest incotne over the term of the lease using
the ner investment method {before tax}, which reflects a constant periadic rate of return

Operating leases

Assets acquired for use by customers under operaung lease agreements, including tmual direcr costs
incurred 1n negouating an operating lease, are capicalised and included 1n the relevant category of fixed
assets Depreciation 1s charged on a straighe-line basis to write the value of the asset down to the expecred
restdual value over a peniod consistent with other assets of a sumilar type

Operating lease income and the iminial direct costs are recognised 1n other operating income on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease

Where the Group 1s the lessee

The Group has entered into operating leases in respect of office premises The total payments made under
operaung leases are charged to the income statement as operaning expenses

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with onginal matunities of three months or less, including
cash and non-restricted balances wath central banks, certificates of deposit and loans and advances to banks

Pensions

The Group’s post-retirement benefit arrangements are described 1n note 26 The Group operates a number
of pension and other post-reurement benefit schemes, both funded and unfunded, of the defined benefit
and defined contribution types For defined contributon schemes, the contriburion payable in respect of
the accounting peniod 1s recognised 1n the income statement

The defined benefit schemes are accounted for using the option permitted by the amendment made to
IAS 19 Employee Benefits whereby actuanal gains and losses are recognised outside the income statement
and presented 1n the statement of comprehensive ncome The amount recogmsed in the balance sheet 1n
respect of defined benefit schemes 15 the difference between the present value of the defined benefic
obligation at the balance sheet date and the fait value of the plan’s assets, if any The defined benefit
obligatton 15 calculated annually by independent actuartes using the projected unic credst method The
principal assumptions are set out 1n note 26 The present value of the obligation 1s determined by
discounning the esumated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated 1n the currency 1n which the benefits will be patd and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the relaced pension habihey
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Long term employee benefits

The Group operates long term profit share schemes for the benefit of employees The costs of such schemes
are recognised 1n the income statement over the period 1n which the services are rendered that give nse
1o the obligauon Where the payment of profir share 15 deferred until the end of a specified vesung pertod,
the deferred amount 1s recognused 1n the income statement over the period up 1w the darte of payment

Taxation

Tax payable on profits and deferred tax are recognused in the income statement excepr to the extent that
they relate to 1tems that are recognused 1n equity, 1n which case the rax 1s also recognised 1n equuty

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet Lability method, on temporary differences arising
berween the rax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts Deferred tax 15 determined
using tax rates and laws that are expected to apply when a deferred tax asset 15 realised, or when a deferred
tax liability 15 settled

The principal temporary differences anse from depreciaton of property, plant and equipment, deferred
P P porary property, p P

profit share arrangements, revaluaton of certain financial instruments including derivative contracts and
available-for-sale securities, provisions for posi-retirement benefits and rax losses carried forward

Deferred tax assets, including the tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward, are only recogmsed
where 1t 15 probable thar future taxable profits will be available agamst which the temporary differences
can be unlised Deferred tax 1s not provided on temporary differences ansing from investments in subsidiary
underrakings and associated undertakings, unless the uming of the reversal of the temporary difference
15 controlled by a third party or 1t 1s probable that the difference will reverse 1n the foreseeable furure

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity 1n the period in which they are declared by the
Company's shareholders at the Annual General Meenng or, 1f earlier, when they are paid

Provisions and COFItInanClﬁS

Provisions are recognised only when the Group has a present obligaton {legal or constructive) as a result
of past events In addition, 1t must be probable that a transfer of economic benefics will be required ro
settle the obligation, and 1t must also be possible to make a reliable esumate of the amount of the obligation

The Group recognises provisions in respect of onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeung the obligations under the contrace

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations ansing from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Group’s control, or present obligations that
are not recognised either because 1t 1s not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be reltably esumated Conungent liabilities are
disclosed unless the possibility of a transfer of economuc benefits 1s remote

6l
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2. Financial Risk Management

21 Strategy in using financial instruments

The use of financial instruments 1s fundamental 1o the Group’s banking and treasury activines The
Group provides a range of lending products to 1ts clients and funds these actuvities by means of deposic-
taking, medium rerm note issuance and other borrowings The Group invests 1n debt securities 1n order
to profit from the interest margin over 1ts cost of funds and to provide a portfolio of liqund assets to assist
in the management of liquidity risk and to hedge forecast cashflows The Group uses derivanve financial
mstruments, pnnapally, to manage 1ts exposure to interest rate and currency nisk Further informanon on
derivauve contracts and the Group's hedging strategies 1s set out 1n note 15 The key risks ansing from the
Group's actvities mvolving financial instruments are as follows

—  Credit risk — the nsk of loss ansing from chent or counterparty default

-~ Marker nisk — exposure to changes in market variables such as interest rates, currency exchange rates,
equity and debt prices

—  Liquidity and funding nisk — the nisk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meetng obligations
assoctated with financial habilities that are sectled by delivening cash or another financial asset

22  Credit nisk

Credir risk anises from all exposures to clients and counterparties relating to the Group’s lending, trading
and 1nvesiment acuvities Limits on credic nisk are set by the Group Management Commuttee and by the
Credit Commuttee The Credit Commuttee reviews concentrations and makes recommendations on
credit decisions to the Group Assets and Liabilities Commuttee Credit nisk Lumuts are set, where appropriarte,
1n respect of exposures to individual clients or counterparues, to industry sectors and to countries

Exposure to credit nisk 1s managed by detailed analysis of chient and counterparty credirworthiness prior
to entering into an exposure, and by conunued monutoning thereafter A sigmificant proporuen of the
Group's lending exposures 1s secured on property or other assers, the Group monirors the value of any
collateral obrained The Group also uses netting agreements to restrict credit exposure 1o counterpartics
For internal monitoring purposes, credit exposure on loans and debt securities 1s measured as the principal
amount outstanding plus accrued interest Credit exposure on derivauves 1s measured as the current
replacement value plus an allowance for the potential change in replacement value

The Credit Commuttee reviews credit exposures on loans and debrt securities on a quarcerly basis and for
this purpose they are classified as follows

Category 1
Exposures where the payment of interest or principal 1s not 1n doubr and which are not designated
caregories 2 to 5

Category 2

Exposures where the payment of interest or principal 1s not in doubt, but which require closer observauon
than usual due to some detenoration 1n the posiion of the client, for example poor trading results, difficult
conditions 1n the client’s market sector, competitive or regulatory threarts, or the potential impacr from
currency or other factors
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22 Credit risk (continued) 63

Category 3
Exposures where there has been further deterioration in the position of the client Although the exposure
1s not considered to be impaired, the relavonship requires close monutoring by the frone office team

Category 4
Exposures that are considered to be impaired and which carry a provision against part of the loan Some

recovery 1s expected to be made

Category 5
Exposures that are considered to be imparted and which carry a full provision No sigruficant recovery
of value 15 expected

a Credit nsk exposure

The tables below disclose the maximum exposure to credit nisk ar the reporung date for financial assets wich
signuficant exposure to credit nisk, wathout taking account of collateral held or other credit nsk minganon
Accounts recervable are treated as past due when more than 90 days has elapsed since the invoice was issued

Past due
Category Category Category but not Categonies !mpairment Total
| 2 3 impared 4and 5 allowance (net)

Group £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2010
Cash and balances at central banks 810857 - - - — - 810857
Denvative financial instruments 17032 - 115 - — - 17 147
Loans and recevables to banks 183375 - - - - - 183375
Loans and recervables to customers 733105 133632 143636 49863 117,754  (90155) 1087835
Available-for-sale financial assets
— debt securiies 627031 12571 1,573 — 35,472 (26433) 650214
Cornmitments and guarantees 36579 3859 {0,408 - I 497 - 52,343
Accounts recevable 96033 3,309 1,226 10258 5,861 5411) 111276
Total 2,504,012 153,371 156,958 60,121 160,584 (121,999) 2,913,047
At 31 March 2009
Cash and balances at central banks 571985 - - - - - 571985
Cervative financial instruments 9797 - - — - - 9797
Loans and receivables to banks 496793 - - - - - 496793
Loans and recevables to custormers | 152643 168,492 110807 13272 94451 (70,718)  1,468947
Avallable-for-sale financial assets )
- debt securtties 897308 31,190 - - 33,156 (24499) 937,156
Commitments and guarantees 202612 13390 17710 - 2233 - 235945
Accounts recevable 7235 3738 9 2525 7483 (7346) 93645
Total 3418373 216,807 128,526 15,801 137,323 (102,562) 3,814,268

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
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Past due
Category Category Category but not Categories Impairment Total
| 2 3 impaired 4and 5 allowance (net)
Company £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Ar 31 March 2010
Cash and balances at central banks 810,847 - - - - - 810847
Derwative financial instruments 17,032 - 15 - - - 17 147
Loans and recevables to banks 97,714 - - - - - 97714
Loans and receivables to customers 776,181 133632 143636 38836 97,107 (86,010) 1103382
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
~ debt securites 627031 12571 1573 - 35472 (26433) 650214
Commitments and guarantees 584286 3859 10,408 - 1,497 - 600050
Accounts recevable 53415 - - 4418 4,220 (3703) 58,350
Total 2,966,506 150,062 155,732 43,254 138296 (116,146) 3,337,704
At 31 March 2009
Cash and balances at central banks 570913 - - - - - 570913
Derwvative financial instrurments 9797 - - - - - 9797
Loans and recetvables to banks 396473 - - - — - 396,473
Leans and recevables to customers 1,220,065 168942 110807 2380 79,104 (66196) 1515102
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
— debt securrties 897308 31,190 - - 33156 {24 498) 937,156
Commitments and guarantees | 070001 13,390 7710 - 2233 - 1,103334
Accounts recevable 57,083 - - 2320 7397 {5541) 61,259
Total 4,221,640 213,522 128517 4,700 121,890  (96,235) 4594034
The tables below analyse amounts past due but not impaired
Past due by Past due by
< 6 months > & months Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Group
At 31 March 2010
Loans and receivables to customers 15,533 34,330 49,863
Accounts recenable ) 5,131 5.127 10,258
Toual 20,664 39,457 60,121
At 3| March 2009
Loans and receivables to customers 10,136 3136 13,272
Accourts recenvable ' 2106 423 2529
Total 12,242 3,559 15,801

N M Rothschild & Sons Limuted
Registered Number 925279
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Past due by Past due by
< 6 months > 6 months Total
£000 £'000 £'000

Company
At 31 March 2010
Loans and recevables to customers 7.275 31,561 38,836
Accounts receivable 4,12 306 4418
Total 11,387 31,867 43,254
At 31 March 2009
Loans and recewvables to customers 2,380 - 2,380
Accounts recevable 2,106 214 2,320
Total 4,486 214 4,700

Financial assets with the following carrying values would have been classed as past due or imparred 1f they
had not had their terms renegouated 1n the year

2010 2009
Group and Company £000 £'000
Loans and recewables to customers 79,900 27839

b Collateral

The Group holds collateral against loans and receivables to customers and debt securiues Esumates of
the fair value of collareral are made when a loan 1s approved, and are generally updated when a loan 1s
indmidually assessed for impairment

Collateral takes various forms Property loan exposures are typically secured by fixed charges on the
underlying property (80 per cent of the commutted property loan book benefiung from first ranking
charges) and may also be supported by other security or guarantees All property 1s subject to a
professional valuanon ac incepuion and may be revalued periodically through the hfe of the loan
Leveraged finance exposures are typically secured by fixed and floaung charges over material assets of che
borrower The value of this securicy will vary over time and 1s dependent on the types of asset secured,
the junisdicuon of the borrowers and the ability to dispose of the company as a going concern Exposures
1 the natural resources sector are almost all secured Security may take the form of corporate debentures,
fixed charges on assets or charges on the cashflows arsing out of commodity finance and export proceeds
Asset finance exposures are secured on assets including invoices, plant and equipment, stock and property
Where the collateral held relates to fixed charges over tangible assets, the fair value 1s arnved at using the
estimated marker value of the assets less the costs of disposal Other collateral, typically in the form of a
fixed or floating charge over a wide range of business assets, 1s valued using modelling techniques to
estimate the amount that would be realised if the Group exercised 1ts securnity

The table below gives an estimate of the fair value of collateral held by the Group as security against loans
to customers thart are individually impaired and past due bur not imparred

b5
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Past due Past due
but not Individually but not Indvidually
mmpaired  impared  impared  impaired
2010 2010 2009 2009
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Group

Property 24,080 10,461 4379 21,040
Debt and equity securrties - 6633 - -
Commercial vehicles and other equipment 9,502 18,045 7616 17,276
Guarantees and fixed or floating charges 17,086 - - 6,087
Other - 1,955 - 2,433
Collateral held 50,668 37,094 11,995 46,836
Amount of loans collateralised 49,863 43,795 £3,272 50,332

Company
Property 21,750 2,668 500 15079
Debt and equity securrties - 6,633 - -
Commercaal vehicles and other equipment - 8715 - 8,767
Guarantees and fixed or floating charges 17,086 - - 6,087
Other - 1,955 - 2,433
Collateral held 38,836 19,971 500 32,366
Amount of loans collateralised 38,836 23,148 2,380 34,984

C C!‘Edlt risk concentrations

The Group monitors concentrations of credit nisk by geographic locaton and by industry sector The

following rables show an analysis of credit sk by location and by sector The locanon for loans and

receivables 15 derermined by reference to the location of the borrower, and debr securittes are recorded

based on the locanion of the wssuer of the security The sector analysis 1s based on Global Indusuy

Classification Standards and includes derivanve financial imnstruments, loans and receivables to banks,

loans and recervables ro customers, debt securiies, commitments and guarantees
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UK and
Channel Qther US and

Islands Europe Canada Other Toral
Credit risk by location £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
At 31 March 2010
Cash and balances at central banks 810,847 0 - - 810857
Derwvative financial instruments 7030 10,093 24 - 17,147
Loans and recelvables to banks 25,341 129767 53 28214 183375
Loans and receivables to customers 698973 312,115 59,090 17 657 |1 087,835
Avalable-forsale financial assets — debt securtties 231508 306 644 105,501 6,561 650214
Commitments and guarantees 22936 13570 16976 4861 52,343
Accourts recevable 47 889 52992 2,301 8,094 111276
Total 1,844,524 825,i91 177,945 65,387 2,913,047
At 31 March 2009
Cash and balances at central banks 570913 1,072 - - 571,985
Derwative financial instruments 7272 2455 63 7 %797
Loans and receivables to banks 3927125 84,833 643 18592 196793
Loans and receivables to customers 857,358 491,063 58624 61,902  1,468947
Avallable-for-sale financial assets — debt securties 221,827 564,266 128249 22814 937 156
Commitments and guarantees 153,708 29200 49031 4,006 235945
Accounts recenvable 30399 40700 4850 17 696 93,645
Total 2,234202 1,213,589 241,460 125,017 3.814,268
Company
At 3) March 2010
Cash and balances at central banks 810847 - - - BlOg47
Derwvative financial instruments 7030 10093 24 - 17147
Loans and recevables to banks 23,965 73251 c3 445 97,714
Loans and recervables to customers 714520 312,115 59,090 17,657 1 103382
Avallable-for-sale financial assets — debt securities 231,508 306644 105501 6561 650,214
Commitrnents and guarantees 570,643 13570 10976 4861 600,050
Accounts recevable 35552 I%.';‘?B— 2,—207—’ B 2,593 g8-350_
Total 2,394,065 733,671 177,851 32,117 3,337,704
At 31 March 2009
Cash and balances at central banks 570913 - — - 570,913
Denvative financial instruments 7,272 2455 63 7 9,797
Loans and receivables to banks ) 387,526 7197 ®’ 1,712 396,473
Loans and recemables to customers 903513 4~9 1,063 58,624 61902 | 5I5 102
Available-for-sale financial assets — debt securm~es— ZMZHI 827- v 56"4,?_._667 o Ii8,£49_ __“—2—2.—BI~4— ~9—37_I_5—6~
Commuments and guarantees 021,097 29200 4903t 4006 1103334
Accounts recevable 29,153 25071 ml 212 5 Bi3 61,259
Total 3,141,301 1,119.252 237,217 96,264 4,594,034
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2010 2009
Credit risk by industry sector £000 £000
Group
Energy 41,139 131,403
Materals 152,843 254,293
Industrials 118924 169,337
Consumer discreticnary 155542 201,590
Consumer staples 69,543 90198
Health care 16017 23734
Financial (see below) 1,468,984 1934616
Real estate (see below) 508,673 601 470
[T and telecoms 71,620 86,721
Utilties 12,427 3582
Governments 122,985 22670
Private perscns 13757 16500
Related party loans, commitments and guarantees 49,317 184,509
Total 2,801,771 3,720,623
Company
Energy 41,132 131,403
Materials 147,613 246,864
Industrrals 78498 114975
Consumer discretionary 116942 164467
Consumer staples 67,466 86274
Health care 10,367 18,655
Financial (see below) 1,382361 1.837986
Real estate (see below) 504,335 595457
[T and telecoms 71620 86,721
Utilities 12,427 3582
Governments 104 685 42
Private persons 13,757 16500
Related party loans, commitments and guarantees 728,144 1,229 849
Total 3,279,354 4,532,775

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
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Financial and real estate sector exposures may be analysed as follows

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

£000 £000 £000 £'000
Financial sector
Short term interbank exposures 992977 1,016,795 907,423 933,832
Treasury marketable securities
- Investment grade 403,166 810306 403,166 810,306
Cash/investment backed lending 19,245 44706 19,245 31535
Finance companies 22817 34,483 22817 34,483
Insurance - - - -
Other 30,779 28,324 29,710 27830
Total 1,468,984 1,934,616 1,382,361 1,837,986

Short term incerbank lending and marketable securities are held for hiquidity management purposes

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Real estate sector
Senior loans 415617 527,502 411,279 521,489
Subordinated/mezzanine 93,056 73968 93,056 73968
Total 508,673 601,470 504,335 595,457

Real estate exposures are supported by income generated by a large number of tenants from a wide vanety
of industry sectors Exposures are broadly evenly split berween the major properry rypes and are locared
predominantly within the UK There 1s mimmal exposure to speculative development, and development
facilities are provided 1n respect of pre-sold or pre-let properues, or wath access to addinonal secunry
and/or guarantees Exposures wich an element of development financing represented 6 4 per cenr of sentor
loans (£26 4 million) as at 31 March 2010 All speculative developments have been completed by
31 March 2010

2.3 Market risk

Market risk anises as a result of the Group’s acuvities 1n interest rate, currency and equity markets and
comprises interest rate, foreign exchange and equity price nsk During the year, exposure to marker nisk
has continued 1o be small in relation to captal, as crading acuvities have been focused on servicing chient
requirements rather than on proprietary risk-taking

Lunits on market nisk exposure are sec by the Group Assets and Liabihiues Committee Monutering of
markert nisk limuts and determiunation of trading profits are undertaken daily, independently of the dealing
area Rusk limuts are complemented by other measures and controls, including stress testing to estimate
the losses that could occur when markets behave in unusually volaule ways and wich hicde iquidiry
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23  Market nsk (continued)

Marker risks associated with treasury and equity positions are described below wich a desciption of nisk
management and the levels of nsk

The market nisk ansing 1n the Company's subsidiary undercakings 1s immatenal

Treasury

Marker risk 1n treasury activities arises from interest rate and foreign exchange positons Foreign exchange
and interest rate concracts are used for trading and for hedging purposes Risk is momitored daily using
a sensitvity-based value at nisk approach, which determines the effect of changes 1n marker price factors,
including currency prices, interest rates and volaulinies, on positions Shifts 1n marker price factors and
correlations are calculated weekly, or more frequently in turbulent markets, using the industry standard
of 99 per cent probability over a ten day holding penod for all risks except currency posiuon nisk, which
1s measured using a 99 per cent probability over a one day holding period The market nisk figures below
are denived from weekly figures

12 months to 31 March 2010 12 months to 31 March 2009
Average High Low  Average High Low
Company £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Interest rate rsk 761 1386 259 1,324 2304 642
Foreign exchange nsk 19 65 2 31 153 3
Total value at risk 780 1,451 261 1,355 2457 645

The main assumpuion used in the calculation 1s that price factors are normally distnbuted This 15 a
common assumption n value at sk calculatons but 1s known to be tenuous, parucularly for interest
rares and volanlities, and 15 onc of the reasons for the use of a high probability over a long holding period

Equities

The Group has exposure to equity price nisk through holdings of equity 1nvestments and warrants on
equity investments Each of these positons is individually approved by semor management and s
monitored on an individual basis The table below shows the Group’s equuty price nisk 1n relation to these
inscruments by locaton

UK and
Channel Other US and
Islands Europe Canada Cther Total

Equity price rnisk by location £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Group
At 31 March 2010
Equity Investments 53922 55402 1,275 - 110,599
At 31 March 2009
Equity investments 52,766 56,793 - - 109,559
Company
At 31 March 2010
Equity investments 52,252 55210 1,275 - 108,737
At 31 March 2009
Equity investments 51966 56,793 - - 108,759
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If the price of all the equities and of those equiies on which dervative imstruments are dependent were
to fall by 5 per cent, then for the Group there would be a post-tax charge to the income statement of
£l and a charge to equity of £3,982,000 (2009 £ml and £3,944,000 respectively), and for the
Company there would be a post-tax charge to the income statement of £ml and a charge to equity of
£3,915,000 (2009 £ml and £3,915,000 respectively)

The Group and the Company may have potential exposure to equity investments as a resule of the
Company's underwnting activittes At the year end the ner contractual commument was £ml (2009
£ml), after taking account of sub-underwnting commitments recerved

Currency nisk

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuatons 1n foreign currency exchange rates on 1ts
financial position and cash flows The table below summarises exposure to foreign currency exchange rate
nisk The net posiuons in the table below are measured by reference to the foreign currency exposures of
monetary assets and habilities after taking account of positions in dettvatives

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 200%
Long/(short) Long/(short)
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Us$ 18905 6827 1,500 341
Euro 217 2,305 (527) (2 660)
Cther 5408 7,964 283 222

If the value of these currencies fell by 5 per cent aganst sterling, then for the Group there would be a
post-tax charge to the income statement of £883,000 (2009 £615,000) and for the Company there
would be a post-tax charge to the income statement of £45,000 (2009 credic of £75,000)

Interest rate nisk

The following rable summarnises exposure to interest rate risk by showing the impact on the fair value of
interest-bearing assets and liabiliues, and of interest rate derivatives, if base interest rates in each currency
shown maved up or down by 1 per cent This table includes all interest rate nisk, including thar within
the treasury and banking businesses and also, 1n 2009, the structural interest rate exposure that arose
from the reinvestment of fixed rate subordinated liabilities and shareholders’ funds As at 31 March
2010, the subordinated habilities had been reclassified as equity and therefore 15 no longer included 1n
the interest rate exposure
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Group Company
£ Euro Us$ £ Euro uss$

£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £7000 £000
At 31 March 2010
+1% o (L156) (198 271 (9¢8)  (198) 27
1% (153 210 75) 965 210 (275)
At 31 March 2009
+i% 10463 1,596 401 11473 1 596 411
-1% (11,389)  (1613) (419)  (12399)  (1.613) (419)
24 Liquidity risk

Management of hquidity nisk 15 of paramount importance to the Group, to ensure that 1t can meec us
liabilities as they fall due The Group's strategy for the management of hiquidity focuses on the maintenance
of a diversified funding base of appropnate duration 1n refation to the Group’s assets

Liquidity 1s measured by classifying cash flows into furure ume bands using a senes of prudent
assumptions and caleulating the resultant gap, either surplus or deficit, 1n each period The net hquidity
gap represents the difference between cash inflows and outflows arising 1n a paracular ume pened on
the assumpuion that all liabilities mature on their adjusted matunty dates and are not replaced, and that
assets are repad only at their contractual maturity dates In pracuce, habilines are extended and new
liabilities are taken on as part of the Group’s day to day funding acuvites The Group manages the
maturity profile of assets and Liabihues in accordance with 1ts iquidity policy and within regulatory and
internal limits

Liquidity 1s momitored daily independently of the front office Treasury staff responsible for day-to-day
liquidity management, and 1s subject to oversight by the Group’s Assets and Liabiliies Commuttee which
also sers cashflow mismatch limus for each period

These mismatch limuts are generally caleulated using the contractual marunty of financial assets and
liabshries except for the following

marketable debr secuniuies are included in the demand time band (at an appropnate discount),

reflecting the fact thar these assets are traded 1n liquid markets and can readily be converted 10 cash,

certain classes of customer deposits are included 1in a ume band longer than their contractual
maturty, as historical data for these types of deposit show thar the depostts are nort typically repaid
on their contracrual maturity dates This “behavioural adjustment” has been agreed with the FSA
for hquidity monitening and reporting and 1s subject to regular review, and

15 per cent of undrawn loan commitments are included as a cash outflow in the “demand” ume
band 1n accordance wich the FSAs mismatch liquidicy guidelines

As at 31 March 2010, the overall one month ratio of cumulatve behaviourally adjusted ner cashflows
over total deposits was 41 54 per cent (2009 13 97 per cent), well in excess of the FSA limit of -5 per cent
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The tables below analyse the Group’s financial assets and habilities based on contractual matunty

Demand No fixed

Demand -3m Im-lyr >lyr  matunity Total
Group £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £000
At 31 March 2010
Cash and balances at central banks 810,836 - - - 21 810,857
Loans and recewables to banks 56362 118436 8526 51 - 183375
Derwvative financial instruments 95 | .666 511 14,875 - 17,147
Loans and recewables to customers 40064 95179 96821 890,189  (34418) 1087835
Available-for-sale financial assets 30,184 40,142 263,496 316,392 110599 760,813
Other - 55,808 - - - 59,808
Total 937,541 315,231 369,354 1,221,507 76,202 2,919,835
Deposits by banks 100828 65,835 104,842 8000 - 279505
Repurchase agreements - 115468 92910 - - 208378
Due 1o customers C 159505 232456 34256 810273 = 1236490
Denvative financial instruments 26 4,374 1,471 14,870 - 20741
Debt securties n ssue - 65000 89091 31I1BIB - 465909
Other — 43918 5321 4523 - 53762
Total 260,359 527,051 327891 1,149,484 — 2,264,785
At 31 March 2009
Cash and balances at central banks 571597 - - - 388 571985
Loans and recewvables to banks 425,508 68,325 - 2.960 - 496,793
Denvative financial instruments 805 1,945 | 696 5,357 - 9797
Loans and recenvables to customers 23609 119,827 189,612 1158509  (22.610) 1468947
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,390 83833 37905t 472 882 109559 1046715
Other - 107,811 3417 1,668 5,661 118,557
Total 1,022,909 381,741 573770 1.641,376 92998 3,712,794
Deposits by banks 162,245 156 198 106,531 25,000 - 449974
Repurchase agreements - 685568 48240 99000 - 832,808
Due to customers N 145748 444933 26,370 46,106 - 663157
Derwative financial instruments "7 2078 3214 1478 30241 - 38200
Debt secunties in 1ssue - 116,681 479,070 389 388 - 985,139
Subordinated labilities - - - - 271014 271,014
Other - 10626 - - - 10,626
Foral 310,071 1,417,220 661,689 590,935 271.014 3,250,929
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2. hinancial Risk Management {continued)

74 24 Lqudity nsk (continued}
Demand No fixed

Demand -3m 3m-lyr >lyr  maturity Total
Company £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2010
Cash and balances at central banks 810,826 - - - 21 810,847
Loans and recevables te banks 5,106 92 608 - - - 97714
Dervative financial instruments 95 |,666 511 14,875 - I7:I47
Loans and receivables to customers 91,902 160,893 66,804 817589  (33806) 1,103382
Avallable-for-sale financal assets 30,184 40,142 263,496 316392 108,737 758951
Other - 58,350 - - - 58350
Total 938,113 353,659 330,811 1,148856 74,952  2,846,39(
Deposits by banks 99300 65835 104,842 8,000 - 277977
Repurchase agreements - 115468 92910 - - 208378
Due tc customers 224,803 297,456 34256 1,122,093 - 1,678,608
Denvative financial instrurments 26 4,344 1411 [ 4,864 - 20,645
Debt securities in 1ssue - - 89,091 - - 89,021
Other - 26,881 - - - 26,881
Total 324,129 509,984 322510 1,144,957 - 2,301,580
At 31 March 2009
Cash and balances at central banks 570,525 - - - 388 570913
Loans and recevables to banks 360,212 36,261 - - - 396,473
Dernvative financial instruments 805 1,945 1,690 5357 - 9,797
Loans and recewables to customers 105,832 104,038 250,188 1077654  (22610) 1,515,102
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 1,330 83833 379.051 472,882 108,759 1,045%15
Other - 66,172 - - 5,661 71833
Total 1,038,764 292,249 630,929 1,555,893 92,198 3,610,033
Deposits by banks 160,205 156,198 106,531 25,000 - 447934
Repurchase agreements ) - 685,568 48,240 99,000 - 832808
Due 1o customers 244,230 444933 349 838 435494 - 1474495
Dervative financial instruments 2,078 2936 1,258 31,436 - 37,708
Debt securtties in 1ssue - 116,683 154,682 - - 271,365
Subordinated lhabilities ) - - . - 271014 271014
Other ' — 10626 - - - 10626
Total 406,513 1,416,944 660,549 §90,930 271,014 3,345,950
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

25 Matunty of financial liabilities

The following tables show contractual cash flows payable by the Group and the Company on financial
hiabilities, analysed by remaining contracrual maruricy at the balance sheet date Loan commitments and
guarantees are included at the earliest date they can be drawn down or called upon This table does not
reflect the iquidity position of the Group or Company Interest cashflows on undated subordinated debt
and the related denvauve cashflow hedges are shown up to five years only, wath the principal balance
shown 1n the perperual column

Demand

Demand -3m 3m-lyr lyr-5yr >5yr  Perpetual Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 3] March 2010
Deposits by banks 100,829 66243 105 569 BOI3 - - 280,654
Repurchase agreements - 119359 93406 - - - 212765
Cue to customers 159625 234955 56,365 824481 32,139 - 1,307565
Debt securrties in 1ssue - 65818 92,373 313814 - — 472005
Other labilities - 431918 5,321 4523 - - 53762
Totat 260,454 530,293 353,034 1,150,831 32,139 - 2,326,751
Loan commitments and guarantees - 52,343 - - - - 52,343
At 31 March 2009
Depostts by banks 162,245 157,124 107,505 26,001 - — 453275
Repurchase agreements - 687843 48 807 102,836 - - 839,486
Due to customers 145934 447724 27713 46,106 - - 667477
Debt securities in 1ssue - 120,704 496,574 396,481 - - 1,016,159
Subordinated labilities - 1,433 12,772 56,783 - 283,882 354870
Other habilities - 10,626 - - - - 10,626
Total 308,179 1,425.454 694,171 630,207 - 283,882 3,341,893
Loan eommitments and guarantees — 235945 - - - - 235945
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

25 Matunty of financial liabilities (continued)

Demand

Demand -3m Im-lyr lyr-5yr >5yr  Perpetual Total
Company £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 3| March 2010
Deposits by banks 99,301 66,243 105,569 8013 - - 279,126
Repurchase agreements - 119,359 93,406 - - - 212,765
Due to customers 224923 300,773 57,696 1,138,297 32,139 - 1,753828
Debt securities in 1ssue - - 91,042 - - - 21,042
Other liabilities - 26881 - - - - 26881
Total 324,224 513,256 347,713 1,146,310 32,139 — 2363642
Loan commitments and guarantees — 600,050 - - - -~ 600,050
At 3| March 2009
Deposits by banks 160,205 157,121 107,905 26,031 - — 451262
Repurchase agreemenits — 687843 48,807 102,836 - - 839,486
Due to customers 244 464 451,089 361,139 448,374 - — 1,505,066
Debt securrties in 1ssue - 117,339 162,628 - - - 279967
Subordinated habilies - 1,433 12,772 56,783 - 283,882 354,870
Other liabilities - 10626 - - - - 10,626
Total 404,669 1,425,451 693,251 634,024 — 283882 3,441,277
Lean commitments and guarantees - 1,103,334 — - - - 1,103,334

2.6  Capital management

The Company’s capital management policy 1s to ensure that it 15 adequately capitalised and compliant
with regulatory requirements

The Company's regulator 1s the FSA who sets and momitors caputal requirements for UK regulated financial
institutions A firm’s minimum regulatory capirtal 1s derived from a combination of the requirements
from Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 rules Pillar 1 sets out the mummum capital requirements required to meet
credit, market and operational nsk Pillar 2 lays dewn a supervisory review process 1o evaluate an insttution’s
own internal process to assess 1s own capital needs including capral for nsks not covered by Pillar 1
The credir risk capital requirement that the Company, and cetiain other subsidiaries which are parc of 1s
solo-consolidated group, are required ro hold 1s largely determuned by their balance sheers and off-
balance sheer positions weighted according to the credit raung and type of exposure to counterparties
Processes are 1n place to ensure compliance with the mimimum capital requirements set by the FSA

An annual Internal Capiral Adequacy Assessment Process (“]CAAP”), which 1s subject to FSA review, 15
also undertaken to review the nisks and capital requirements of the business over a rolling three year
planning cycle The Group’s risk management processes are designed to ensure that all risks are idenufied
and thar they are covered by capital or other appropnate measures
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2 Financial Risk Management (continued)

26 Capital management {continued)

The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital for the solo-consolidated group ar
31 March, as reported 1o the FSA

2010 2009
£m £m

Tier | capital
Called up share caprtal 577 577
Share premium account 979 979
Retained earnings and other reserves 2657 2354
Pension fund vatuation adjustment 578 b6
Deductions from tier 1 capital (49 (5hH
Total ver | capital 4742 3975

Tier 2 Capital
Perpetual subordinated debt 1243 2709
Collective prowisions 344 - 233
Other items 02 -
Deductions from tier 2 capital - (82)
Total tier 2 capntal 1589 2860
Total tier | & 2 capital 6331 6835
Deductions from total of tier | and tier 2 capnal® (161 4) (161 1)
Capital Resources 4717 5224

* Deducnions from toral tier 1 and ter 2 capital anse from equity or loan investments in/to subsidiarses
or other related parues

3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value 15 the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liabihity settled, berween knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transacuen For financial instruments carried at fair value, marker prices
or rares are used to determune thar fair value where an actuve market exists (such as a recogrused exchange),
as 1015 the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument Marker prices are not, however,
available for certain financial assets and liabilities held or 1ssued by the Group Where no acuve market
price or rate 1s available, fair values are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques, using
inpucs based on market conditions exisung at the balance sheet date The valuation may be derved from
quotations recetved from vanous sources Where the market 1s ilhquid, the quotations may not be
supported by prices from actual market transacaons
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3.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Valuation techniques are generally apphied to over the counter dervatve transactions and unhsted debe

and equity securities The most frequently applied pricing models and valuation techmques include

discounted cashflow rechniques and option valuation models The values derived from applying these

techmiques are significantly affected by judgements made en the choice of valuation model used and the

assumpuons made concerning factors such as the amounts and uming of furure cash flows, discount

rates, volatility, and credit quahity

The methods adopted to determune the farr value of each type of financial asser or hability are

summarnsed below

N M Rothschild & Sons Linuted

Regstered Number 925279

Cash and balances at central banks, loans and recervables to banks and deposits by banks Fair
value of these instruments 1s materially the same as their carrying value due to the short term
nature of the financial asset or habilicy

Loans and recesvables to customers have been reviewed and their terms and pricing compared
to recent sumular transactions Where a material difference 1n terms and/or prnicing has been
observed, or where there 1s any other indication thar the fair value of the asset differs marenally
from 1ts carrying value, the disclosed fair value has been adjusted accordingly

Repurchase agreements and amounts due to customers The fair value of these instruments 15
determined by discounting the future cashflows at marker interest rates adjusted for the
appropnate credit spread

Debt securities 1n 1ssue Fair value ts determined using quoted market prices where available, or
by discounung the future cashflows at marker interesr rates adjusted for the approprate credic spread

Other financial assets and hiabilities Fair value 1s considered to be the same as carrying value for
these assets

Derivative financial instruments and available-for-sale financial assets are carried in the balance
sheet ar fatr value, usually determined using market prices or valuatuons provided by third partes
Debt securinies or unhsted equity secunties for which no price 1s available are valued by
discounung expected furure cashflows ar market interest rates adjusted for approprarte credit
spreads Within debt secunities, a portfolic of a small number of asset backed securites has been
difficult to price due to a lack of hiquidity 1n the market The fair value of these securities 1s based
on external estimares together wich values ascribed to them 1n repo transactions As a result of the
global credit crunch, there are few undetlying transacuons against which to calibrate these
valuations and quoted prices are significantly below par value although the assets are not
considered to be impaired Nonetheless, where there 1s a quoted market price, 1t has been used
to determine fair value at the balance sheet date
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities {continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Carrying Far Carrying Fair
Value Vilue Value Value
2010 2010 2009 2009
Carried at amorused cost £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Group
Financial assets
Loans and receivables to custemers 1,087,835 922572 1468947 1085862
Financia} labilities
Deposits by banks 279,505 279340 449,974 449,974
Repurchase agreements 208378 208,680 832,808 833,055
Due to customers 1,236490 1,241,785 663,157 663,157
Debt securities in 1ssue 465,909 457,985 985 139 966,162
Subordinated labilities - - 271,014 121,178
Company
Financial assets
Loans and receivables to customers 1,103,282 938,119 1,515,102  1,132017
Financial habilities
Deposits by banks 277977 277812 447,934 447,934
Repurchase agreements 208,378 208680 832,808 833,055
Due to customers 1678608 1683903 1474435 1455518
Debt securities in issue 8%.091 89288 271,365 271,365
Subcrdinated habilities - - 271,014 121,178
Carrying value

equal to Measured using

fair value Level | Level 2 Level 3
Carried at fair value £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Group —as at 31 March 2010
Financiaf assets
Financial assets — trading 4433 5 4,428 -
Financial assets held for risk management purposes 12,714 - 12714 -
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 760,813 627907 54,960 77946
Toral 771,960 627912 72,102 77.946
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities - trading 4,368 - 4,368 -
Financial liabilities held for risk management purposes 16,373 - 16373 -
Total 20,741 - 20,741 -
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities {continued)

80 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Carrying value
equal to Measured using
fair value Level | Level 2 Level 3
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Company — as at 31 March 2010
Financial assets
Financial assets — trading 4,433 5 4,428 -
Financial assets held for risk management purposes 12714 - 12714 -
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 758951 626,045 54,960 77946
Total 776,098 626,050 72,102 77,946
Financial liabihues
Financial habilities - trading 4368 - 4,368 -
Financial habilities held for risk management purposes 16,277 - 16277 -
Total 20,645 - 20,645 -
Group — as at 31 March 2009
Financial assets
Financial assets — trading 5596 40 5,556 -
Financial assets held for nsk management purposes 4,201 - 4201 -
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 1,046,715 933,540 39.107 74,068
Total 1,056,512 933,580 48,864 74,068
Financial habilities
Financial liabilities — trading 5458 6 5452 -
Financial liabilties held for nsk management purposes 32,753 - 32,753 -
Total 38211 (3 38,205 -
Company — as at 31 March 2009
Financal assets
Financial assets — trading 5596 40 5,556 -
Financial assets held for risk management purposes 4,201 - 4,201 -
Availlable-for-sale financial assets i 1045915 932,740 39,107 74068
Total 1,055,712 932,780 48,864 74,068
Financial habilives
Financial habilties — trading 5458 6 5452 -
Financial liabiities held for risk managen;ent purposes 32,250 - 3:2.250 -
Total 37,708 6 37,702 -

N M Rothscheld & Sons Limited
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in acuve markets for identcal assets or habilities

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asser or
liabiliry, erither directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (1e derived from market data to a significant extent) An
example would be an instrument valued using a price carnings mulaple of a comparable quoted company

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based primanly on observable market data
(unobservable inputs) Typically this will be used for instruments with uncertain cashflows and the valuanon
will therefore depend upon the expected cashflows, estimated maturity and the discount factar used

Assets measured at fair value based on Level 3 as at 31 March 2010

There were no significant transfers berween assets valued at Level 1 and ar Level 2 in the year The
following table presents the movement 1n assets valued using Level 3 valuation methods in the year

Group Company
Avallable-for-sale financial assets £'000 £'000
At | April 2009 74,068 74,068
Total gains and (losses)
— In Income statement (2,793) (2,793)
— through cther comprehensive Income 5855 5,855
Settlements (38) (38}
Transfers intof(out of) Level 3 1,220 1,220
Exchange (366) (366)
At 31 March 2010 77.946 77,946

Toral losses of £2,793,000 were included in the income statement 1n respect of assets held at the end of the
reporting period

A sensiuvity analysis has been performed on the cash flows of the assets valued with a Level 3 methodology
These have been flexed to assume that either 10 per cent more or 10 per cent less cash 1s umformly recerved
over the life of the investment The effecr that these vartauons would have on the fair value of the assets
15 summarised below

Group Company

2010 2010

£000 £000

Current fair value 77946 77,946
Cash flow +10% addition to far value 7.806 7,806
Cash flow -10% reduction in fair vam“e ) S - o 7.78“5 7.785

8l
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4.  Net Interest Income

2010 2009
82 £'000 £000
Interest income

Loans and recevables 77,902 180,822
Awallable-for-sale financial assets 13,622 61,234
Other 1,211 1,786
92,735 243,842

Interest expense and simdar charges
Armounts due to banks and customers 46,088 124,608
[Debt securities In 1ssue 18,804 55,631
Subordinated lhabilities 1,564 14,807
66,456 195,046

Included within interest income 15 £3,668,000 (2009 £2,611,000) 1n respect of interest income accrued
on impatred financial assets

5.  Net Fee and Commission Income

2010 2009
£'000 £'000

Fee and commussion income
Banking and credit-related fees and commissions 5,218 5896
Fees for advisory work and other services 360,695 347967
Other fees 15,760 8,443
381,673 362,306

Fee and commission expense
Investment banking advisory fees payable 29.241 21,767
Other fees payable 3i7 135
29,558 21,902

Investmenr banking advisory fees payable represent fees paid to other members of the Rothschild group
where the Company has worked 1n collaboration with another group company 1n a transacuon, or fees
paid to any subcontracted parties outside the Rothschild group

6. Diwvidend Income

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 1,827 1,697

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
Registered Number 925279
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7. Net Trading Income

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Foreign exchange {losses)/gains (2,06%) 8115
Interest rate instruments - trading 782 591
Interest rate instruments - hedging (125) 313
Equities 707 (987)
(705) 8,032

Net trading income anises from movements in the fair value of finanaial assets held for trading and from
hedging strategies The following acuvities give nise to net trading income

- Trading in foreign exchange spot, forward and opuion contracts, loans, interest rate futures, swaps
and forward rate agreements

- Holding equities for trading purposes and posiuons arising from the underwriung of equity and
equity-related 1ssues

Gains and losses on the ineffective portion of designated hedging relationships are also recognised in net

trading income

8 Fair Value Movements

Fair value movements represent the change 1n fair value of synthenc CDO investments attriburable to
credit denvatives, as explained 1n note 1 Synthetic CDOs take on credit exposure in the form of credic
dervauves which, under IFRS, must be treated as “embedded dervatives” with changes in fair value
recognised 1n the mncome statement All syntheuc CDOs were sold in the year ended 31 March 2009

9.  Operating Expenses

2010 2009
Note £'000 £'000
Staff costs 10 255,384 241,170
Administratve expenses 70,837 64,122
326,221 305,292

The auditor’s remuneration was as follows
2009
2010 (restated)
£'000 £000
Audrt fees relating to the Company 256 236
Avudt fees relating to subsrdlary— und;er‘takmgs T a7 o 497
Audtt fees relating to subswd»al:y_u;\dertak:;wgs In respect of the prior year 64 ‘ _
737 733
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9  Operating Expenses (continued)

Remuneration payable to the auditor and 1ts associates for non-audit work was as follows

84
2010 2009
£'000 £000

Non-audit services pursuant to legislation including intenim reviews 43 40
Tax ser_wces ) ) ) ) S ) 3‘;2 7 119
Accounting advice T s 65
Other work 4 7
414 24|

10. Staff Costs
2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Salaries (excluding profit share} 85,825 49,902 82,251 51,558
Social securty costs 9.067 5409 8477 5708
Staff benefits and other staff costs 16,348 9,751 13776 10153

Pension costs

- Defined benefit plans 26 5152 5009 (14422) (14542)
— Defined contribution plans S T 726 3353 209 3,037 2105
Post-retirement benefits &4l 718 449 649
Staff costs {excluding profit share} 120,386 72,985 93,868 55,231
Directors’ and employees’ annual profit share 134,594 92,965 146,723 108,815
Long term profit share schemes 404 404 579 1308
Directors’ and employees’ profit share 134,998 93,369 147,302 110,123
Total staff costs 255,384 166,354 241,170 165,354

The average number of petsons employed by the Group during the year was 1,204 (2009 1,191) The
number of persons employed at 31 March 2010 was 1,194 (2009 1,231) The average number of persons
employed by the Company during the year was 728 (2009 754) The number of persons employed by
the Company at 31 March 2010 was 722 (2009 744)

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
Reglstered Number 525279
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] Taxation

Tax charged to the income statement

2010 2009

£'000 £000
Current tax
— Current penod (1,943) 15,389
—Pror year adustmerts B (1473) 8993
Total current tax {credit)/charge (3.4186) 24,382
Deferred tax
— Ongination and reversal of tming differences 2,134 (5.8%1)
~ Pror year adjustments 3050 (9.474) -
Total deferred tax charge/(credit} 5,184 (15,365)
Total tax charged to income statement 1,768 9017
Tax on wems (charged)/credited to other comprehensive income

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Deferred tax on avallable-for-sale financial assets (5.739) 15,140
Current tax on avallable-forsale financial assets (18159) 7,458
Deferred tax an cash flow hedges - (457) 763
Deferred tax on actuanal gains and losses on defined benefit pension schemes 20696 14516
Total tax (charged)/credited to other comprehensive income (3,659) 37877
Tax on items credited to equuty

2010 2009

£000 £'000
Current tax on distnbutions to non-controlling interests 3765 -

The tax charged on income duffers from the theoretical amount that would anse using the standard tax

rate as follows

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Profit before tax 137918 50,542
Tax calculated at the UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2009 28%) 38617 14,152
Adjustment to tax charge n respect of prior years 1,577 (481)
Income from associate recorded net of tax in profit before tax (462) (52)
Non tax deductible expenses 582 1,480
Effect of different tax rates in other countries (1,435) 4,081
Income not subject to tax (37.709) (10,101
Previously unrecorded deferred tax now recognsed ey <
Other - i ) ) L O 22)
Total tax charged to Income statement 1,768 9,017

Furrher informarton about deferred rax 15 presented 1n note 25
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[2.  Group Profit Dealt with in the Financial Statements of the Company

£117,036,000 (2009 £25,900,000) of the Group profit ateributable to ordinary shareholders has been dealr

86
with 1n the accounts of the Company As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the

income statement of the Company has not been presented separately

3. Loans and Receivables

2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£000 £'000 £000 £000

Loans and receivables to banks
Included in cash and cash equivalents 171,613 97,714 493,816 396,473
Other (1,762 - 2977 -

183,375 97.714 496,793 396,473

Loans and receivables to customers

Loans and recewvables to customers - at amortised cost 1,177993  1,1893%4 [,539.665 (581,298

Allowance for credit losses (90,158)  (B6012) (70718)  (66.196)
1,087,835 1,103,382 1,468,947 1,515,102

Loans and recervables to customers include finance lease recervables as follows

2010 2009
Group £000 £'000
Gross investment in finance leases, recevable
| year or less 38,273 40,046
5 years or less but over | year 60,084 64333
Over 5 years [119 845
99,476 105,224
Unearned future finance income on finance leases (16,946) (18517)
Net investment in finance leases 82,530 86,707
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows
2010 2009
Group £000 £000
| year or less 32011 33211
5 years or jess but over | year 49.6;32 52,750
Over 5 years 887 746
82,530 86,707

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
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13. Loans and Receivables {continued}

The movement in the allowance for credit losses on leans and receivables 1s as follows

Group Company
Specific  Collective Total Specfic Collecuve Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
At | April 2009 47417 23,301 70,718 43,586 22,610 66,196
Charge to Income statement 41,791 ILE7 52,908 42,171 11,196 53367
Amounts written off (33.216) - (33216) (33216) - (33216)
Recoveries 199 - 199 16 - Ié
Exchange movements (4s1) - 45N (451} - (451)
At 31 March 2010 55,740 34418 90,158 52,206 33,806 86,012
At | April 2008 3,395 8,012 14,407 566 7,187 7.753
Charge to Income statement 46,252 15584 61836 45578 15718 61,296
Amounts written off (3,334) (295) (3.629) (3.662) (295) (3.957)
Recoveries |7 - 17 17 - 17
Foreign currency translation
and other adjustments 1,087 - 1,087 1,087 - 1,087
At 31 March 2009 47417 23,301 70,718 43,586 22,610 66,196

Allowance for credic losses relates to loans to customers

Following the amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7, “Reclassification of Financial Assets”, on 1 July 2008
the Company transferred from available-for-sale financial assets to loans and receivables those financial
assets to which the definiuon of loans and recervables would apply on the reclassification date On the
reclassification date and on 31 March 2010 the Group had the financial capacity to keep the loans

concerned to their marunity date or for the foreseeable future There were no further reclassificanons in the
year ended 31 March 2010 The movements in the fair value of the financial assets reclassified are as follows

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Carrying value of assets to be reclassified at | Apnl 2008 - 340,483
Impairments before reclassification - -
Fair value movements before reclassification - 10,059
Other movements - (2,960)
Carrying amount of assets reclassified on | April 2009/1 July 2008 386,646 347,582
Imparments after reclassification (6,067) 9.100)
Sale and redemptions ) (115,09C) {17,765)
Further drawdown of revolving credit facilties 3.—| 39 -
Amortisation of frozen avalable-for-sale reserve 10,675 2,806
Exchange and other movements (10577) 56,124
Closing carrying amount of assets reclassified 268,726 386,646
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13. Loans and Receivables (continued)

2010 2009

88 £000 £000
Fair value of assets reclassified on | April 200%/1 July 2008 261,942 347,582

Sale and redemptions (123,223) (17.765)

Further drawdown of revetving crednt faclities 3,139 -

Fair value movements in the period after reclassification 103,478 (133,859}

Exchange and other movements 4,363 65,984

Closing fair value of assets reclassified 249,699 261,942

As of the reclassification date, the net effective interest rates, after associated funding costs, on reclassified
financial assets was 2 88 per cent

A revaluanion gain of £109,545,000 would have been recognised 1n other comprehensive income 1n the
year to 31 March 2010 had the assets not been reclassified (2009 revaluarion loss of £124,758,000)

After reclassification, the reclassified financial assets concributed the following amounts, after associated
funding costs, to profit before tax

| July 2008 to

2010 31 March 2009

£000 £'000

Net interest income 4610 5,737
Impairment losses (6067) (2.101}) )

Loss on disposals (2.622) -

Profit before tax on reclassified financial assets (4.079) (3.364)

14. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

2010 2010 2009 2009

Group Company Group Company

£000 £000 £'000 £'000

Debt securtties 676,647 676,647 961,654 961,654

Allowance for imparmenit ) (26433)  (26433) (24498)  (24.498)

Total debt securities - at fair value 650,214 650,214 937.156 937,156

Equity securtties 113552 U11590 110,560 109 660

Allowance for impairment (2.953) (2.853) (1.001) (501}

Total equity securities - at fair value 110,599 108,737 109,559 108,759

Total available-for-sale financial assets 760,813 758,951 1,046,715 1,045915

N M Roshschild & Sons Limted
Registered Number 925279
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4  Available-For-Sale Financial Assets {continued)

2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company 89
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Available-for-sale financial assets may be analysed as follows
Debt securities
~ Listed 646,284 646284 32521 932,521
— Unlisted _ 3,930 3930 4,635 4,635
Total debt securities 650,214 650,214 937,156 937,156
Equity securities
— Listed 31,951 30281 36,487 35,879
— Unlisted 78,648 78456 73072 72,880
Total equity securities 110,599 108,737 109,559 108,759
Total available-for-sale financial assets 760,813 758,951 1,046,715 1,045,915

Available-for-sale debr securities of £336,380,000 (2009 £807,709,000) were pledged as secunty under

sale and repurchase agreements

Equuty securities as at 31 March 2010 include shares in Pans Orléans SA, Third New Court Limited and

Rothschild Holding AG, fellow subsidiaries of Rothschild Concordia SAS

The movement 1n the impairment allowance for available-for-sale financial assets 1s as follows

2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Debt securities
At | April 24,498 24,498 22,929 22,929
Charge to income statement 2,793 2,793 21,289 21,289
Exchange movements (858) (858) 3020 3,020
Armounts written off - - (4.734) {4.734)
Disposals {sale and redemption) - - (18006) (18006)
At 3| March 26,433 26,433 24,498 24,498
Equity secuniues
Ac | April 1,001 201 901 901
Charge to income statement i 1869 1,869 100 -
Exchange movements 83 83 - -
At 3! March 2,953 2,853 1,001 901

N M Rothsciuld & Sons Limiied
Repistered Number 925279
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14.  Available-For-Sale Financial Assets {continued)

90 The movement in available-for-sale financial assets may be summarised as follows

2010 2010 2009 2009

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

At | April 1,046,715 1,045915 1,986,305 [,983,880
Exchange differences (32595)  (32.599) 194,269 194269
Addtions 382682 382490 55748 55556
Disposals (sales and redemptions) (701323) (701,323) (730,582) (730,582)
Gains/(losses) from changes In far value 69,996 69,126 (77,660)  (75943)
Movement in allowance for mparment (3.887) (3,887) (1,66%) (1.569)
Redlassification to loans and recevables - —  (347.582) (347582)
Redlassification to associated undertaking - - {27280y (272800
Armounts written off - - (4.834) {4,834)
Unwinding of discount (775) (775) - -
At 3| March 760,813 758,951 1,046,715 1,045915

IS Dervative Financial Instruments

The Group's use of financial inscruments, including dervatives, is set out 1n note 2. A derivauve 1s a financal
instrument, the value of which 1s derived from the value of another financial instrument, an index or some
other varable (the “underlying”) Typically the underlying is an interest rate, a curtency exchange rate or the
price of a debr or equity security The majority of dervative contracts are negotiated as to amount, tenor and
price between the Group and 1ts counterparties, whether other professionals or customers, and are known
as “over the counter” (“OTC"”) derivauves The remainder are standardised 1n terms of their amounts and
settlement dates and are bought and sold 1n organised markets, and are known as exchange traded denvarives

Denvaave instruments are carried at fair value, shown in the balance sheet as separate rotals of positive
replacement values (assets) and negative replacement values (Labilities) Positve replacement values
represent the cost to the Group of replacing all transactions with a fair value in the Group's favour if the
counterparues default Negatve replacement values represent the cost to the Group’s counterparties of
replacing all their transactions with the Group with a fair value 1n the counterparues’ favour if the Group
were to default Posiaive and negatve replacement values on different transactions are only netted if there
15 a legal night of set-off, the transacttons are with the same counterparty and the cash flows wall be settled
on a net basis Changes in replacement values of derivative instruments are recognused 1n trading income
unless they qualify as cashflow hedges for accounting purposes

The Group uses the following denivative financial instruments for both trading and hedging purposes

—  Forward contracts and futures — contractual obliganons 1o buy or sell finanaial instruments on a
future date ar a specified price Forward contracts are OTC contracts, whereas futures are exchange
traded dernivatives

—  Inrerest rate swaps — transactions m which two parties exchange mrerest cash flows on a specified notional
- amount for a predetermuned period Most swaps are OTC mstruments Interest rate swap contracts
generally entail the contractual exchange of fixed and floatng rate interest payments in a single currency

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
Registered Number 925279
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IS. Derivative Financial Instruments {continued)

-~ Options — contractual agreements under which the seller grants the purchaser the nght but not the 9]
obligarion to buy or sell by or ar a future date a specified quanticy of a financial instrument ar a
predetermined price The purchaser pays a premium to the seller for this nght Opuons may be
transacted OTC or on a regulated exchange

Denvatives may be transacted for trading or hedging purposes Trading involves taking posiuons with
the intention of profiting from changes in market vanables such as interest rates The Group enters into
dertvattve transactions primanly for the purpose of hedging exposures 1n the non-trading book The
accounting trearment of hedge transactions depends on the nature of the hedging relauonship and
whether the hedge qualifies as such for accounung purposes Dervative transactions may quahfy as
hedges for accounting purposes as either fair value or cashflow hedges

Fair Value Hedges
The Group’s fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps that are used to protect against changes 1n
the fair value of fixed rate lending, fixed rate debt secunities and fixed rate borrowing

The fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges at 31 March 2010 showed a net loss of
£1,753,000 (2009 loss of £15,535,000) Fair value losses of £9,365,000 (2009 losses of £11,834,000)
on derivatives held 1n qualifying fair value hedging relattonships are included 1n net trading income Farr
value gains of £9,115,000 (2009 gains of £12,044,000), which relate to changes in fair value of hedged
1items attriburable to the hedged nisk, are also included 1n net trading income

Cashflow Hedges
The Group s exposed to vartability in future interest cash flows on non-trading assets and 1ssued debt
securittes which recerve or pay interest at variable rates

Gains and losses on the effective pornion of interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges are
recorded 1n other comprechensive income Gains or losses on any ineffective portion of these swaps are
recogrused immedzately 1n the income statement

A profit of £125,000 (2009 profit of £103,000) was recognised in the income statement in respect of
the mneffecuve poruon of cash flow hedges

The farr value of dervanves designated as cash flow hedges at 31 March 2010 showed a net loss of £1,885,000
(2009 loss of £11,244,000) At 31 March 2010, an unrecogmsed fair value loss of £1,885,000 (2009
£3,516,000) associared with these dervarves has remained deferred in shareholders’ equity and will be
transferred to the itncome statement when the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss Amounts relaung to
cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement during the petiod are included 1n ner trading income

The schedule of cash flows hedged 1s as follows

<lyr 1-3 yrs 3-5yrs 5-10 yrs > |0yrs
Group and Company £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
As at 31 March 2010
Cash outflows (labilities) (3.296) - - - -
As at 31 March 2009
Cash outflows (habilities) {2439) (11.060) (10,898) (31,502) (94.610)

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
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I5S. Dervative Financial Instruments {continued)

Notional principal

Positive fair value

Negauve fair value

N M Rothschild & Sons Limiied
Registered Number 925279

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Group
Contracts held for risk management purposes
Derivauves designated as hedges
Fair value interest rate swaps 989614 289747 12639 442 (14,392) (15,977)
Cash flow interest rate swaps 86,130 228,905 - 2107 (1 885) (13351
Other dervauves held for risk management purposes
Interest rate swaps 10,605 45,244 - 886 (96) (503)
OTC interest rate opticns 12,473 12,976 75 77 - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 464,103 - 689 - (2922)
1,098,822 1,040,975 12,714 4,201 (16,373) (32,753}
Contracts held for trading purposes
Forward foreign exchange contracts 162250 215,156 1,689 1,966 (1 780) {1.966)
Interest rate swaps 87,348 118,051 2,666 35%0 (2588) (3488)
OTC interest rate options - 925682 - - - -
Exchange traded interest rate futures 5934 31,287 S 40 - (6)
Other - - 73 - - -
155,532 457,176 4,433 5,596 {4.368) (5.458)
1,354,354 1,498,151 17,147 9,797 (20,741) (38,211
Company
Contracts held for risk management purposes
Dervatives designated as hedges
Fair value interest rate swaps 989614 289,747 12,639 442 (14390 (15977)
Cash flow interest rate swaps 86 13C 228905 - 2107 (1,885) (13351)
Other derivaoves held for nisk management purposes
Interest rate swaps - 2000C - 886 - -
OTC nterest rate aptions 12,473 12976 75 77 - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 464 103 - 689 - (2,922)
1,088,217 1,015,731 12,714 4,201 (16,277) (32,250)
Contracts held for trading purposes
Forward foreign exchange contracts 162,250 215,156 1,689 | 966 (1 780) (1 966)
Interest rate swaps 87,348 118051 2,666 3590 (2588) (3486)
OTC interest rate options - 92,682 - - - -
Exchange traded interest rate futures 5934 31287 5 40 - (6)
Crther - - 73 - - -
255,532 457,176 4,433 5,596 (4.368) (5.458)
1,343,749 (,472,907 17,147 9,797 {20,645) (37.708)

In dervauves designated as hedges, the notional value of fair value interest rate swaps has increased
significantly 1n the year largely due to the hedging of new fixed term deposits, which were raised as a

result of the Rothschild Reserve offerings during the year
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6. Other Assets

2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Accounts recevable and prepayments
{net of allowances of £5,41 1,000 (2009 £7 346 000)) 117,985 59872 104,379 69,047
Accrued income 17477 15532 32,893 18909
Other 7.553 3511 12,155 2982
143,015 78915 149,427 90,938
I7.  Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Related Liabilities
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Non-current assets held for sale
Leasehold assets 41,147 33012
Less provision on leasehold asset (3.141) (2.520)
Other 7 44
38,033 30,536
Liabilities related to non-current assets held for sale
Borrowings from financial institutions 33772 27,254
Other 1,820 | 399
35,592 28,653

The non-current assets and liabilities held for sale are associated with a leaschold asser ar an Australian

university consisting of student accommodation and other commercial tenants The assets are carnied at cost

ICSS 1mpalrment provisions Ncgotlatlons Wl[l‘l an interested party rcgardmg a potennal sale are in Pprogress

18. Investments in Associated Undertakings

2010 2009
Group £000 £000
Ac | April 37,281 30,201
Additions ) - 5,802
Reclassification from avallable-for-sale financial assets - 27,280
Reclassification to subsidiary undertaking - u(25.94|)
Share of results (net of tax} 2564 369
Increases in far value o ) ' - 207
Dividends - (1511 (1.814)
Ex;hange differences - (SYIS ) 1177
At 31 March 37,763 37,281

23
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I8. Investments in Associated Undertakings (continued)
The Group’s interests 1n 1ts principal associated undertakings, which are unlisted, are as follows

2010 2009
Group’s share of £'000 £'000
Assets 76,587 97,794
Liablities 38.824 63,627
Revenues a 23,000 28911
Resuts (netofta) a5 369

The Company holds a 9 38 per cent interest 1n Rothschidd & Cie Banque, a French limited partnership,
which carries out banking acuvities 1n France The Company also holds a 40 0 per cent interest in Quintus
European Mezzanine Fund Limited Partnershup, a Jersey limited partnership that is an investment vehucle
for institunional investors

The Group’s interests 1n associated undertakings are held by the Company at historical cost of £37,692,000
{2009 £37,692,000 )

19  Investments in Joint Ventures

Jontly controlled entities

The Group holds a 50 0 per cent interest in N M Rothscluld Europe Partnershup, an English partnership,
and a 50 0 per cent interest 1n Rothschild Europe SNC, a French partnership These partnerships undertake
investment banking advisory acuvities in conunental Europe and are accounted for as jomtly controlled
enuties 1n accordance with TAS 31 Interests 1in Joint Ventures using the proportionate consohdation
method The Group's share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the partnerships 1s as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Current assets 13,363 10,525
Current liabilities 6590 3419
Income 14316 9.801
Expenses 9.251 9317
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20. Intangible Assets

925

Intellectual

Property
Rights  Goodwill Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost at | Apnl 2009 | 000 14534 15,534
Additions - (56) (56)
At 31 March 2010 1,000 14,478 15,478
Accumulated amortisation at | Apnl 2009 675 - 675
Amortisation charge T ) - i 100 - 10¢
At 31 March 2010 775 - 775
Net book value at 31 March 2010 225 14,478 14,703
Cost at | Apnl 2008 + 000 14,195 15,195
Acquistion of subsidiary undertaking - 339 339
At 31 March 2009 1,000 14,534 15,534
Accumulated amortisation at | Apnl 2008 575 - 575
Amortisation charge 100 - 100
At 31 March 2009 675 - 675
Net book value at 3§ March 2009 325 14,534 14,859

£9,786,000 of goodwill relates to the purchase of 51 per cent of the share capual of Lanebrdge
Investment Management Limited 1n 2007 The remaining 49 per cent was acquired in December 2009
for further consideration of £3,015,000, of which, £2,310,008 s deferred The difference between the
additional consideration paid and the additional net assets acquired of £1,025,000 was recogmsed

directly in equicy

In assessing impairment of goodwill, the Group has used the latest forecasts of Lanebndge Investment
Management Limited for the periods ro March 2014 and assumed net cashflows thereafier of £500,000
per annum A discount rate of 14 per cent was used on the resulting cashflows which supported the

exisung goodwll valuation

N M Rothschild & Sons Limiied
Regisiered Number 925279
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21.  Property, Plant and EQuipment

Cars,

96 Land and Leasehold Fixturesand Computer

Buldings  Improvements Fitungs  Equipment Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cost at | Apnl 2009 - 12077 20999 24,428 57,504
Addtions T T o T 483 306 807 8696
Deposals T TRy (454 (2346)
Acquston of subsidiary undertakings  ~ _ — 3 T3 33
Exchange diferences < (3 18 18 &0
At 31 March 2010 - 16,222 22,923 24802 63,947
Accumulated depreciation at | April 2009 - 563) 12077 21,850 39,558
Disposals T 151 (42) (2000)
Depreciation charge B ST a0 2681 1495 6606
Exchange differences T - (5) ) ( 865 T dhlu4mmmm(- I“7—I—)"
At 31 March 2010 - 8,096 12,965 22,932 43993
Net book value at 31 March 2010 - 8,126 9,958 1,870 19,954
Cost at 1 April 2008 16614 15359 15967 22,039 69979
Addtions - 1,120 2,450 847 4417
Disposals (16,614) {129 (2.147) (81 (18%71)
Acquisiion of subsidiary undertakings - 2007 3938 : 1816 7761
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - (6.573) (593) ) (46%) (7.635)
Reclassification of operating lease assets i
from loans and recevables - - 933 - 933
Exchange differences - 293 451 276 1,020
At 31 March 2009 - 12,077 20,999 24,428 57.504
Accumulated depreciation at | Apnl 2008 - 2667 9.722 19310 31,699
Disposals - {90} (1 302) s (14710
Depreciation charge - 3143 25611 §,507 7261
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings - 487 206 1253 2646
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - (676) (402) (330) (1,408)
Reclassification of operating lease assets
from loans and recervables - - 378 - 378
Exchange differences - 100 164 189 453
At 31 March 2009 - 5631 12,077 21,850 39,558
Net book value at 31 March 2009 - 6,446 8922 2,578 17,946

Included within the net book value of cars, fixtures and fitungs for the Group as ar 31 March 2010 15
£5,502,000 (2009 £4,199,000) relatung to assets held for use in operaung leases

N M Rotkschild & Sons Limited
Reglstered Number 925279
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21 Property, Plant and Equipment {continued)
Cars,
Land and Leasehold Fixtures and Computer
Buildings Improvements Fittings  Equipment Total
Company £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost at | April 2009 - 9,856 6225 19,562 35,643
Addwons o ) - 3682 18 323 4023
Disposals - - (25) [€))] (28)
At 31 March 2010 - 13,538 6218 19.882 39.638
Accumulated depreciation at | Aprit 2009 - 4703 5,670 18,242 28615
Disposals - - (16) - (16)
Deprematlor_'u charge - 2064 277 211 3,252
At 31 March 2010 - 6,767 5931 19,153 31,851
Net book value at 31 March 2010 - 6771 287 729 7.787
Cost at | April 2008 50,000 8,745 6,118 19219 84,082
Addtions ) - 136 343 1590
Disposals (50,000) ) - (29) - (50,029)
At 31 March 2009 - 9,856 6,225 19,562 35,643
Accumulated depreciation at | Apnl 2008 - 2,639 5238 17,259 25,136
Disposals - - (7 - )
Depreciaion charge - 2064 439 983 3486
Ax 31 March 2009 - 4,703 5,670 18,242 28615
MNet book value at 31 March 2009 - 5.153 555 1,320 7,028
22. Debt Securities in Issue
2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
Medium term floating rate notes 376818 - 713774 -
Certificates of depasit in 1ssue 8§9.091 89.0%1 271,365 271,365
465,509 89,091 985,139 271,365

Medium term notes are 1ssued under the Group’s Euro Medium Term Note programme The notes are issued
at a floaung rate of interest and had residual matunities of between 1 month and 1 year 6 months as at 31
March 2010 (2009 berween 11 months and 2 years 6 months) Certificates of deposit 1ssued by the
Company had residual marurity dates of up to 4 months as ar 31 March 2010 {2009 10 months) and

are 1ssued ar a fixed rate of interest

N'M Rothschild & Sons Limited
Repastered Number 925279
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23. Other Liabilities

2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
Note £000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Accounts payable 35771 15,044 41,343 5500
Defined benefit pension labilities 26 88,775 87,073 26,930 24,846
Other habilities 6,685 6,942 4012 1,955
131,231 109,059 72,285 32,301
24. Subordinated Liabilities
2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Preference shares
£100,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares - - 100 100
Subordinated notes
Perpetual floating rate subordinated notes (€150 million) - - 119,150 -
Due to fellow subsidiary undertakings
Perpetual floating rate subordinated Joan (€150 million} - - - 119,150
Perpetual floating rate subordinated loan (US$ 00 miflion) - - 52394 52,394
Perpetual fixed rate subordinated lcan (£75 million) - - 99,370 99,370
- - 27L014 271,014

On 29 May 2009 the Company redeemed the £100,000 cumulauve redeemable preference shares 1t had

previously issued The consequence of that 1s that the interest payments on the Groups perperual

subordinarted notes are no longer contracrual obliganions In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 32
and TAS 39, the subordinated debr instruments have now been reclassified as equity at their fair value on
29 May 2009 The overall effect of this reclassificauon gave rise to a profit of £133,748,000 1n the Group

Income starement
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25. Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using an effecave 99

tax rate of 28 per cent (2009 28 per cent)

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as follows

2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
At | Apnl 101,455 89,695 51,992 44,626
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 3679 -
Recognised in income
Income statement (charge)/credit (5.184) {5.247) 15,365 15,130
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Defined benefit pension arrangements 20696 20,696 14516 14516
Available-for-sale securities
— Farr value measurement (5.739) (5,496} 22,158 21678
—Transfer to Income - - (7.018) (7018)
Cash flow hedges
— Fair value measurement (457) (457) 763 763
Exchange differences 1,002 - - -
At 3| March 114,773 992,191 101,455 89,695
Deeferred tax assets are attributable to the following items
2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Accelerated tax depreciation 10,117 4,695 9933 5,206
Deferred profit share arrangements 45531 38958 42715 40,11}
Pension and other post-retirement benefits 26226 26,276 6955 6,955
Available-for-sale securities 20,358 20,756 25962 26,118
Tax losses ) 5099 5079 7.508 6,850
Cther temporary differences 4,442 3477 8,382 4,455
111,773 99,121 101,455 89,695

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
Regisiered Number 925273
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25. Deferred Income Taxes (continued)

The deferred tax (charge)/credit 1n che income statement comprises the following temporary differences

2010 2010 2009 2009

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Accelerated tax depreciation 183 GBI 3883 2019
Deferred profit share arrangements (1.148) (1,153) 13,306 13,338
Avallable-for-sale securities 134 134 134 134
Pensions and other post-retirement benefits {1.425) (1,425) (7,466) (7.466)
Tax losses (2 409) (1.771) 7,508 6850
Other termporary differences {519) (521) (2000) 255
(5.184) (5.247) 15,365 15,130

Deferred rax assets, including those in relanion to tax losses carned forward, are only recognised where 1t
1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised After reviewing medium term profit forecasts, as adjusted for tax purposes, the Group considers
that there will be sufficient furure profits against which these deferred tax assets can be unihised

Deducuble temporary differences relating to unutihised tax Josses within the Group for which no deferred
tax asset has been recogmsed 1s £101,000 (2009 £nil)

Deferred tax habilies have not been recognused for the withholding tax and other raxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries and other interests as 1t 15 antcipated that such
profits would qualify for exemption from UK taxation

26. Retirement Benefit Obligations

Defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefits

The Company 1s a member of a group pension scheme, the NMR Pension Fund (“the Fund”), which 1s
operated by the Company for the benefit of employees of certain Rothschild group companies 1n the
United Kingdom The Fund comprises a defined benefit section, which closed to new entrants in April
2003, and a defined contribution scheme established wich effect from April 2003 The Company has

unfunded obligations in respect of pensions and other post-retrement benefits

The Group and the Company have adopted the revisions to 1AS 19 which were published 1n December
2004 Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in full in the period 1n which they oceur, ouwside the
income statement through the statement of comprehensive income

The latest formal actuanal valuation of the Fund was carned out as at 31 March 2007 and has been
updated for IAS 19 purposes to 31 March 2010 by qualified independent actuaries As required by IAS
19, the value of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost have been measured using the
projected unit credit method

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
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26. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

The principal actuanal assumprions used as at the balance sheer date were as follows

1¢]l

Group and Company 2010 2009 2008
Discount rate 5 60% 700% 650%
Retall price inflation 370% 320% 360%
Expected rate of salary increases ) 470% 420% 460%
Expected rate of increase in pensions n payment
— Capped at 50% per annum 360% 3 10% 350%
—  Capped at 2 5% per annum 2 40% 220% 230%
Life expectancy of a pensioner aged 60
—  Male 273 27 | 264
— Female 29 | 25 | 289
Life expectancy of a future pensioner aged 60 in 20 years tme
—  Male 294 293 277
- Female 304 303 299
Movement in defined benefit obligation

2010 2010 2009 2009

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At | April 355737 353,653 417424 417424
Acquisition of subsidiary - - 1,766 -
Current service cost (net of contributions
paid by other plan participants) 2,726 2,583 4987 4447
Current service cost relating to other plan participants 1,065 1,065 1,009 1,009
Interest cost 24336 24,336 26773 26,773
Actuanal losses/(gans) 143,122 143235  (61622) (61622)
Benefits pad {15326) (14996  (15823) (I15315)
Past service costs - - (19063)  (19,063)
Exchange differences (82) - 306 -
At 3] March 511,578 509,876 355737 353,653
Movement in plan assets

2010 2010 2009 2009

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £000 £'000 £000
At | April 328,807 328,807 422,764 422,764
Expected return on plan assets 21910 21910 27099 27,09
Actual less expected return on assets o 69327 69327 (113472) (113472)
Contributions by the Group T 7000 16690 7230 67R
Cortributions by other plan partcpants 1065 1065 1009 1009
Benefits pad " ’ " (15326)  (149%6)  (15823) (15315
At 31 March 422,803 422,803 328807 328,807

N M Rothschid & Sons Limited
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26. Retirement Benefit Obhigations (continued)

At 31 March, the fair value of plan assets comprised

2010 2009

Group and Company £'000 £000
Equities 186762 124,822
Bonds 83,298 63,407
Gllts and cash 81,978 75,843
Property 11,984 11365
Hedge funds 23,843 20,380
PFl private equity and infrastructure 34,938 32,990
422,803 328,807

The expected return on assets for the financial year ended 31 March 2010 was 6 9 per cenc pa (2009

6 8 per cent) The rate of return 1s derived from the weighted average of the long term expected rates of

return on the asset classes in the Trustees’ intended long term investment strategy A deduction was then

made from the expected return on assets for the expenses incurred 1n runmng the Fund

The actual return on plan assets i the year was 2 gan of £21 2 mullion (2009 loss of £86 4 mullion)

Amounts l'CCOgI'llSCd 1n Income statement

2010 2010 200% 2009

Group Company Group Company

Note £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Current service cost 2726 2,583 4967 4,447
Interest cost 24336 24336 26,773 26,773
Expected return on plan assets (212100 (21,910 (27,099)  (27099)
Past service costs - - (19,063) (12.063)
Total (included in staff costs) 10 5.152 5009  (14422) (14,942)

Amounts recognised 1n the balance sheet for current and previous four periods are as follows

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
Present value of fund obligatiens 507,808 351751 415210 444396 457,165
Fair value of plan assets (422,803) (328,807) (422,764) (433,465) (420984)
85,005 22,944 (7.554) 10,931 36,181
Present value of unfunded obligations 3770 3986 2,214 2342 2,486
Balance sheet liability/(asset) 88,775 26,930 (5.340) 13,273 38,667
Company

507,808 351751
(422803) (328:807)

Present value of fund obligations

Farr value of plan assets

415210 44439% 436970
(422764) (433465 (403612)

85,005 22,944 (7.554) 10,931 33,358
Present value of unfunded obligations 2,068 1,902 2214 2,342 2,486
Balance sheet liability/(asset) 87,073 24,846 (5.340) 13,273 35,844

N M Rothschitd & Sons Limited
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26. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

The experience adjustments ansing on the plan assets and habilities were as follows

103

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Group
Actual less expected returmn on assets 69327 (113472) (33,138) (2,249) 46,532
Experience gans and losses arising on habilities 2,362 444 (2,982) 4343 (300)
Company
Actual less expected return con assets 69327 (113472)  (33,138) (3.157) 45,063
Experience gains and losses ansing on liabilities 2362 444 (2.982) 4,480 GIn
Amounts recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income
2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Actuaral losses recognised in the year (73795)  (73908)  (51.850)  (51.850)
Cumulative actuarial losses recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income (128,445) (128,558) (54,650)  (54.650)

It 15 estimared that total contributions of £6 7 mullion will be paid to the Fund in the year ending 31 March

2011, of which it 15 estimated that the Company will pay £5 7 million

In 2010 the highest paid director was not a member of the defined benefit pension scheme In 2009, the

highest paid director was a member of a defined benefit pension scheme under which his accrued

pension at the year end was £161,000

Defined contribution schemes

2010 2010 2009 2009

Group Company Group Company

Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Contnbutions paid 10 3353 2196 3,137 2,105

These amounts represent contributions to the defined contribution section of the Fund and other defined

contrlbutlon pension arrangements

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
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27. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Guarantees
Guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit 11,574 522,031 23,160 875,959
Commitments
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit Iines
and other commitments to lend 40,769 78019 212,785 227375

From tme to time the Group 1s involved 10 judicial proceedings or receives claims arsing from the conducr

of 1ts business Based upon available informauon and, where appropriate, legal advice, the directors do

not believe that there are any potential or actual proceedings or other clams which will have a martenial

adverse impact on the Group's financial position

Assets pledged

2010 2009
Group and Company £000 £000
Investment securities 336,380 807 709
Loans and recevables 214,082 369,056

Assets are pledged as securnity over Euroclear overdraft facihities and as collateral to secute habihnes under

sale and repurchase agreements and borrowing faciliues These transacuons are conducted under terms

that are usual and customary to standard lending and secunities borrowing and lending acuvities

A mandatory reserve deposit of £21,000 (2009 £388,000) 1s held with the Bank of England 1n accordance
with statutory requirements This deposit 1s not available to finance the Group’s day 1o day operauons

28. Operating Lease Commitments

At 31 March 2010, the Group was obligated under a number of non-cancellable operating leases for premises

used primanly for banking purposes The sigmficant premises leases usually include renewal options and

escalation clauses in line with general office rental marker conditions

Mimimum commitments for non-cancellable leases of premises and equipment are as follows

Land and Buildings Other
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Upto | year 14,112 9,097 245 254
Between | and 5 years ) 63566 58658 257 178
More than 5 years 2i7.839 236,664 - 144
305517 304419 502 576

Operating expenses include operaung lease rentals of £13,055,000 (2009 £10,378,000)

N M Rothschild & Sons Limted
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29. Distributions

2010 2009

£'000 £'000 105
Other Equity Interests
Perpetual floating rate subordinated loan (US$100 million) 1,082 -
Perpetual fixed rate subordinated loan (£75 million) 7.595 -
Perpetual floating rate subordinated notes (€150 million) 4,770 -
13,447 -
Tax credrt thereon (3.765) -
9,682 -
Ordinary Shares
Interim divdends (pad) 30,000 -
39.682 -

Dividends per ordinary share was 52p (2009 Op)

30. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpases of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with an onginal matunty of less than three months

2010 2010 2009 2009

Group Company Group Company

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash and balances at central banks 810836 810,826 571597 570525
Loans and advances to banks 171613 97714 493816 396473

982,449 908,540 1,065,413 966,998

31. Transactions with Related Parties

Group

Transactions with key management personnel (and their connected persons) of the Group are as follows
010 2009

At 3| March £000 £000

Loans and accrued interest 6 1303

Deposits 1,129 610

Key management personnel are the directors of the Company and of parent compantes

Loans to directors are secured and are made 1n the ordinary course of business on normal commercal
terms, with the exception of travel season uckert loans of £6,000 (2009 £8,000) which are unsecured and
provided on an interest-free basis Deposits are taken on normal commercial terms

N M Rothschild & Sons Limuted
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31  Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

2010 2009
106 £000 £000
Key management personnel compensation

Short term employee benefits 7.334 1,137

Post-retirement benefits 86 100

Other long term employese benefits 1019 2130
Amounts recervable from related parties of the Group are as follows

2010 2009

Loans and Other Loans and Other

Advances Assets Advances Assets

At 31 March £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts due from parent companies 38,224 26 47,295 171

Amounts due from associated undertakings 1139 538 7659 364

Amounts due from cther related parties 9,364 10,026 35951 9,787

Other related parties are fellow subsidiaries of Rothschild Concordia SAS

Amounrs recetvable include loans to related parties and amounts recoverable from related parues
respect of expenses incurred on their behalf and services provided Loans are made 1n the ordinary course
of business and on substantially the same terms as comparable transactions with chird parties

Amounts payable to related parties of the Group are as follows

2010 2009

Non-controlling Cther Subordinated Other
Deposits Interests Liabilittes  Deposits Loan Capital Liabilines
At 31 March £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Amounts due to parent companies 27 - 139 20 - 3,098
Amounts due to joint ventures 7372 - - 4,596 - -
Amounts due to assocated undertakings - - 6,368 - - -
Armounts due to penston funds 9,701 - | 1,005 - |

Amounts due té) other related parties )
— subordinated - 72611 - - I51 764 -
- ather ) 197,183 - 5053 247.-506 - 5.644

Amounts payable consist of deposits taken and bank account balances held in the ordinary course of
business and on substantially the same terms as comparable transactions wath third parues

Guarantees from related parties of the Group are as follows

2010 2009
At 31 March £000 £000
Guarantees received from other related parties 50410 10,303

The Group has recerved guarantees from a fellow subsidiary of Rathschild Concordia SAS 1n respect of

certain custemer loans and available-for-sale securities

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
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3L

Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Commutments provided to related parties of the Group are as follows

2010 2009
At 31 March £'000 £'000
Undrawn credit commitments 89 92214

Other transactions with related parties of the Group are as follows

Durnng the year ended 31 March 2009

O

O

a frechold property was sold by the Company to a fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS for a
consideration of £50,000,000 The Group profit of £33,386,000 1s included 1n other operanng income
The consideration compnised 50,000,000 non-voting B shares of £1 each in Third New Court Limited
The investment in New Court Property Services Lunited was subsequently sold by the Group to a fellow
subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS for £35,300,000, the net asset value of the company

the Group acquired from 1ts immediate parent company, the entire share capital of Rothschild Australia
Holdings Limited for £15,095,000, the fair value of the company at the ume of the transaction

the Company sold a portfolio of structured finance products to Shield Securities Lumited, a fellow
subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS, for its fair value The sale crystallised £4,656,000 of losses
that had previously been taken to the avalable-for-sale reserve

the Company issued 2,500,000 ordinary shates of £1 each to 1ts immediate parent company for a
cash consideration of £2,500,000

Amounts recognised in the income statement of the Group in respect of related party transactions are

as follows
Other
Parent Joint  Associated Pension Related
Companies  Ventures Undertakings Funds Parties Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
2010
Interest recewvable 783 - I - 40 834
Interest payable (3) (33) - (13} (i,406) (2,455)
Fees and commissions receivable - - 414 - 2936 3350
Fees and commuisstons payable - (8.448) {2,386) - (21,173)  (32007)
Dwidend income 558 635 1,511 - 798 3,502
Rent payable - - - ~gaen (7167
Recoverable expenses - - - - 3639 3639
2009
Interest recevable 2,890 - 122 - 1,380 4,392
Interest payable (563) (154) - (163) (14200)  (15080)
Fees and commissions receivable - - 347 - 1,056 ) 1,403
Fees and commssions payable ) - (3760 (21 - (2588)  (6:469)
Dwmidend income - - - - 1488 1,498
Other operating ncome - - - - 33386 33386
R;:coverab\e expen;es - - - - 4.559 ) 4,559
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31 Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Fees and commussions recervable/payable relate to transactions where the Group has worked 1n collaboration
with related parties

Company
Amounts recervable from related parues of the Company are as follows
2010 2009

Loans and Other Loans and Other

Advances Assets Advances Assets
At 31 March £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Armounts due from parent companies 38,224 26 47,295 161
Armounts due from subsidiary undertakings 131,237 8,809 183,405 12,713
Amounts due from associated undertakings 1,139 538 2969 364
Amounts due from cther related parties 9,292 3,830 35,879 9,208

Amounts recetvable include loans to related parties and amounts recoverable from related partes 1n
respect of expenses incurred on their behalf and services provided Loans are made 1n the ordinary course
of business and on substanually the same terms as comparable transactions with third parties

Amounts payable to related parties of the Company are as follows

2010 2009
Perpetual Other Subordinated Other
Deposits  Instruments  Liabilites  Deposits Loan Capital Liabilities
At 31 March £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Amounts due to parent companies 27 - 139 20 - 130
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings
— subordinated - 51,724 - - 119150 -
— other 473,685 - 12,672  B23,006 - 5818
Amounts due to joint ventures 14,744 - - 9,193 - -
Armounts due to associated undertakings - - 6,368 - - -
Amounts due to pension funds 9,701 - I 1,005 -
Amounts due to other related parties
— subordinated - 72,611 - - 151,764 -
~ other 197,183 ~ 4854 247506 - 3928

Amounts payable consist of deposits taken and bank account balances held 1n the ordinary course of
business and on substanually the same terms as comparable transactions with third parties

Guarantees made on behalf of and recerved from related parties of the Company are as follows

2010 2009
At 31 March £000 £000
Guarantees made on behalf of subsidiary undertakings 510,455 852,799
Guarantees received fr;:m other related parties i “ 50410 ) ) 10,303
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31.  Transactions with Related Parties {continued)

Company (continued)

The Company has guaranteed £133,637,000 (2009 £139,023,000) of perpetual floating rare subordinated
notes and £376,818,000 (2009 £713,774,000) of medium term notes issued by Rothschilds Continuation
Finance PLC The 1ssue proceeds have been placed on deposit with the Company on terms similar to
those of the notes 1ssued

The Company has recetved guarantees from a fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS 1n respect
of certain customer loans and available-for-sale securities

Commitments provided to related parues of the Company are as follows

2010 2009
At 3| March £'000 £000
Undrawn credit commitments 37,339 107,504

Other transactions with related parues of the Company are as follows

The Company has entered into lease agreements wath a fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS
for the rental of office space One lease agreement expares 1 2018 whalst the ocher expires in 2035 Both
leases are on normal commercial terms

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company transferred s holding of 50 0 per cent of the
1ssued share capital of Rothschild Europe BV to a subsidiary undertaking, Shield Trust Limuted, 1n
consideration for the 1ssue of 39,277 ordinary shares of £1 each (at a premium of £139 75 per share) 1n
Shield Trust Limited

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company transferred its 50 O per cent joint venture interest
in Rothschild Europe SNC to a subsidiary undertaking, Rothschild Gold Limited, 1n consideranion for
the 1ssue of 53,800 ordinary shares of £1 each in Rothschild Gold Limited

Amounts recognised in the income statement of the Company 1n respect of related party transactuons
are as follows

Other

Parent Subsidiary Joint  Associated Pension Related
Companies Undertakings Ventures Undertakings Funds  Parties Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000

2010

Interest receivable 783 3298 - M - 40 4,132
Interest payable G (9649 (65 T~ U3) (2408)  (12,138)
Fees and commissions recelvaI;Ie - 49 - 414 - 2,936 3399
Fees and commuissions payable - (15897) (16,896) (2 386) — Q173 (56352)
Dwidend income 558 18,868 - 1501 - 798 2173
Rent payable - — - ~@len (16D
Recoverable expenslas - (3.537) - - - 3639 102
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31. Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Company (continued)

Other

Parent Substdiary Jont  Associated Pension Related
Compantes Undertakings Ventures Undertakings Funds  Parties Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

2009

Interest receivable 2,850 6,866 - 122 - [ 380 11258
Interest payable (431} {40,188) (307) —  (163) (14200) (5528%)
Fees and commussions recewvable - 108 - 347 - [ 056 1511
Fees and commissions payable - (60200  (7.520) (121} —  {2.588) (16249}
Dividend income - 38,307 3741 1814 - | 488 45,350
Rent payable - (6.241) - - - - (6241)
Recoverable expenses - (3.455) - - - 4559 1,104

Fees and commmussions receivable/payable relate to
collaboration with other group companies

32. Non-controlling Interests

rransactions where the Company has worked 1n

2010 2009
£000 £'000
At | Aprik 25,350 1,797
Profit attributable 1o non-controlling interests 24,547 10,540
Reclassification of perpetual instruments 124,335 -
Reclassification from associated undertakings - 25941
Purchase of non-controling interests (1.024) 712
Dividends (10,184) (18.346)
Interest on perpetual instruments (13447) -
- tax relef therecn 3765 -
Exchange (653) 6,130
At 31 March 152,689 25,350
Non-controlling interests consists of
2010 2009
Note £'000 £'000
Perpetual debt instruments 34 124,335 -
Other ) ) ) 28354 25,350
At 31 March 152,689 25,350




Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

33. Share Capital

2010 2009 i
Authorised 199,900,000 199,200,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each 57,654,551 57,654,551

34. Perpetual Instruments

As described 1n note 24, on 29 May 2009 subordinated debt instruments were reclassified as equity
instruments at their fair value as at the date of reclassification The amount of perpetual instruments
conststs of

2010 2010 2009 2009
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £000 £'000

Perpetual Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes 9% (£75 million) 48,750 48,750 - -
Perpetual Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (€15C million} 51,725 5{,725 - -
Perpetual Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (US$100 rmullion) 23,860 23,860 - -
At 31 March 124,335 124,335 - -

35. Principal Subsidiary Undertakings

The ponaipal subsidiary underrakings of the Company are detailed below All the principal subsidiary
undertakings are registered in England and Wales except where otherwise indicated The Company’s
remawning subsidiary undertakings are not matenal and accordingly no disclosure has been made in
respect of these enuties

Percentage held

Five Arrows Leasing Group Limrted (Lease portfolio management) 100
Five Arrows Leasing Lmited (Asset finance) 100
State Secunties Plc (Asset finance) 100
Specialist Fleet Services Flnanc-e—Llrnltecl (Centract hire and maintenance) 100
Rothschilds Continuation Finance PLC (Finance caompany) 100
Lanebrdge Investment Management Lirnited (Property investment management) 100
Rothschild Europe BV (Investment holdun—g company — incarporated in the Netherlands) 50
Rothschild GmbH (Investment banking company — Incorporated in Germany) 100
Rothschild SpA (Investment banking company — incorporated in Haly) 20
RCF Polska sp zoo (Investment banking company — incorporated in Poland) ) i 100
Rothschiid Portugal - Servicos Fln_anca;os L\r—m{ada (Inve;tment l;ar;kmg company — |nc;>rporated in Portugal) 100
RCF (Russia) BV (Investrent banking company — incorporated in Russia) ) 100
Rothschild Espafia SA (In-vestment E)ankmg comparny — incorporated in Spain) 98
Rothschild (Mldalé East) Limrted (Investmen-t banklag c;)mpany - mcorpo;‘ated in Dubay) o 100
Rothschild Australia Limited (Investment bank_lng company — Incorporated in Austraha) 100
Arrow Caprtal Limited (Investment halding company — |ncorporated“|n Awustralia) _ 100

The histarical cost of the investments in subsidiary undertakings was £43,807,000 (2009 £40,794,000)

N M Rothschild & Sons Lunited
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36 Parent Undertaking and Ultimate Holding Company

112 The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated 15 that headed by Rothschild
Concordia SAS, incorporated in France The smallest group m which they are consolidated 15 that headed
by Panis Orléans SA, registered in France The accounts are available on Pans Orléans’ web-site at
www paris-orleans com

37 Remuneration of Directors

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Directors’ emoluments 6177 6,346
Amounts recevable under long term profit shar:e schermes 2,497 2,128
8,674 9,074
Pension contributions to meney purchase schemes 84 97
8,758 9,171

The emolumenrs of the highest paid director were £1,311,000 (2009 £2,730,000)

210 2009

Reurement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under
Money purchase schemes 6 5

Defined benefit schemes

N M Rolhschikd & Sons Limited
Registered Number 925279




Group Directory

Austrahia

Rothschild Australia Limited
Level 41, 50 Brnidge Street
Sydney, NSW 2000, Australia
Telepbone +61 ()2 9323 2000
Facsimile +61 (0)2 9323 2040

Level 21, 120 Collins Screet
Melbourne, Victoria 3000, Austrabia
Telephone +61 (0)3 9656 4600
Facsimile +G1 (0)3 9656 4950

Belgium

Rothschild Belgique

Succursale de Rothschuld & Cie Banque
Avenue Lowse, 166

1050 Bruxelles

Telephone +32 (0)2 627 77 30
Facaaimzle +32 (0)2 627 77 59

Brazil

N M Rothschild & Sons
(Brasil) Ltda

Av Bngadero Faria Lima 2055
18th Floor, Jardim Paulistano
01451-000 Sdo Paulo, Brazl
Telephone +55 (0011 3039 5828
Eacsemale +55 (0) 11 3039 5826

British Virgin Islands

Rothschild Trust BVI Limited
Palin Grove House, PO Box 438
Road Town, Tertola

Briush Virgin Islands

Telephone +1 284 494 7106
Facsrmile +1 284 494 7105

Canada

N M Rothschild & Sons
Canada Limited

1002, rue Sherbrooke Quest
Bureau 2300, Montreal, Quebec
Canada H3A 3L6

Telephone +1 514 840 1016
Facomle +1 514 840 1015

Brookfield Place

TD Canada Trust Tower

161 Bay Street, Suie 3150
PO Box 206, Toronto
Ontarnio, Canada M3] 251
Teiephone +1 416 369 9600
Facsemile +1 416 864 1261

Channel Islands

Rothschild Bank International
Limited

St Juhan’s Court, St Julian’s Avenue
St Peter Port, Guernsey

Channel Islands GY1 3BP

Telephone +44 (001481 713713
Facamule +44 (0) 1481 727705

Rothschild Trust
Guernsey Limited

St Peter's House, Le Bordage
St Peter Port, Guernsey
Channel Islands GY1 6AX
Telephone +44 (0}1481 707800
Facsemile +44 (0)1481 712686

Rothschild Bank {CI) Limited
St Juhan's Court, St Julian's Avenue
St Peter Port, Guernsey

Channel Islands GY1 3BP

Telephone +44 (0)i481 713713
Facsinale +44 (0) 1481 711272

Chile 115

OC Chile SA

Teannos 220, Piso 5, Santiago, Chile
Telephone +56 (0)2 696 3576
Facsimzle +56 (0)2 696 5825

China

N M Rothschild China
Holding AG

Beyjing Representauve Office

Room 912A, Winland International
Finance Center, 7 Finance Sereet
Xicheng District, Beyung 100033
Peoples Republic of China
Telephone +86 10 6655 5660
Facsimile +86 10 6655 5880

Shanghai Representanve Office
Suite 3207, Tower 2, Plaza 66
1366 Nan Jing X1 Lu Road
Shangha 200040

People’s Republic of China
Telephone +86 21 6288 1528
Facamle +86 21 6288 1517

N M Rothschild & Sons
(Hong Kong) Limited
16/F Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
People’s Republic of China
Telephone +852 2868 1773
Eacsinmle +85.2 2868 1680

France
Paris Orléans SA

23 bus avenue de Messine
75008 Pans, France

Telephone +33 (0)1 5377 6510
Facsimile +33 (0} 4563 8528

N M Rothschild & Sons Limied
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Rothschild & Cie Banque
29 avenue de Messine

75008 Pans, France

Telephone +33 ()1 4074 4074
FEacsinule +33 (Q)1 4074 9847

Rothschild & Cie

23 bis avenue de Messine
75008 Pans, France

Telephone +33 (Q)1 4074 4074
Facsinule +33 (01 4074 9847

Rothschild & Cie Gestion
29 avenue de Messine

75008 Pans, France

Telephone +33 (0)1 4074 4074
Facsimule +33 (0)] 4074 4969

Germany

Rothschild GmbH
Borsenplatz 13-15, 60313
Frankfurt am Main, Germany
Telephone +49 (69 299 8840
Facsimile +49 (069 287 820

Rothschild
Vermogensverwaltungs-GmbH
Ulmenstrafle 18, 60325

Frankfurc am Main, Germany
Telephone +49 (0)62 4080 2600
Facstmile +49 (0)69 4080 2655

India

N M Rothschild & Sons (India)
Private Limited

103, 1st Floor, Piramal Towers
Penninsula Corp Park

Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel
Mumbai 400 013, India

Telephone +91 (0)22 4081 7000
Facsimile +91 (0)22 4081 7001

Statesmanhouse Building

4¢h Floor, B Wing, Barakhamba Road
New Delht 110 001, India

Telephone +91 (011 3044 6622
Facsimele +91 (0)11 3044 6505

Indonesia

PT Rothschild Indonesia
Indonesia Stock Exchange Building
Tower 1, 15th Floor

J1 Jend Sudirman Kav 52-53
Jakarta 12190, Indonesia

Telephone +62 (Q)21 515 3588
Facanule +62 (0)21 515 3589

Israel

Rothschild Israel

40 Habeer Street, PO Box 53
Kfar Vitlan 40200, Tel Awviv, Israel
Telephone +972 72 220 4100
Farsimile +972 72 220 4106

Italy

Rothschild SpA

Via Santa Radegonda 8
20121 Mulan, ltaly
Telephone +39 02 7244 31
Facsomile +39 02 7244 3310

Via § Nicola da Tolentine 1/5
00187 Rome, Italy

Telephone +39 06 4247 01
Facsmude +39 06 4217 0252

Japan

Rothschild Bank AG
Rothschild Japan KK

Tokyo Representative Office

Surte 515 5th Floor, Main Building
Impernal Hotel, 1-1-1 Uchisarwai-cho
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0011, Japan
Telephone +81 (0)3 3519 8835
Facsmile +81 (0)3 3519 8838

Malaysia

Rothschild Malaysta Sdn Bhd
Lerter Box No 42, 29th Floor
UBN Tower, 10, Jalan P Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone +603 2687 0966
Facsmuile +603 2070 1001

México

N M Rothschild & Sons
(México) SA de CV

Campos Eliseos 345-8° piso, Polanco
CP 11550 México DE Méxuco
Telephone +52 55 5327 1450
Facamule +52 55 5327 1485

Netherlands

Rothschild Europe BV

Prins Bernhardplein 200

1097 JB Amsterdam, The Netherlands
Telephone +31 (0)20 422 2516
Facsimule +31 (0)20 422 2516

Poland
RCF Polskasp z oo

Warsaw Financial Centre
Emulu Plater 53

00-113 Warsaw, Poland
Telephone +48 22 549 6400
Facsimule +48 22 549 6402

Portugal

Rothschuld Portugal - Servigos
Financerros, Limitada

Calcada do Marqués de Abrantes
40-1° Esq, 1200-719 Lisbon, Portugal
Telephone +351 (0)21 397 5378
Faesinule +351 (0)21 397 5476
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Russia

RCF {Russia) BV
Nowinsky Passazh (8th Floor)
31 Novinsky Boulevard
123242, Moscow, Russia
Telephone +7 495 775 8221
Facsmile +7 495 775 8222

Singapore

N M Rothschild & Sons
(Singapore) Limited

One Raffles Quay, North Tower
1 Raffles Quay, #10-02
Singapore 048583

Telephone +65 6535 8311
Facsomile +635 6333 8326

Rothschild Trust {Singapore)
Limited

RBZ (Representative) Pte Limited
One Raifles Quay, North Tower

1 Raffles Cuay, #10-02

Singapore 048583

Telephone +65 6532 0866

Facsemule +65 6532 4166

Rothschild Bank AG
Singapore Representatve Office
One Raffles Quay, North Tower
1 Raffles Quay, #10-02
Singapore 048583

Telephone +63 6532 0866
Facsimule +65 6532 4166

South Africa

N M Rothschuld & Sons

(South Africa) (Pty) Limited

1st Floor, Kagiso House, 16 Fricker Road
Ilove 2196, South Africa

Telephone +27 (0)11 215 6800
Facsimle +27 (0)11 215 G826

Spain

Rothschild Espafia SA
Pasco de la Castellana, 35-3°
4o Planra, 28046 Madnd, Spain
Telephone +34 91 702 2600
Facsinule +34 91 702 2531

Awvigunda Diagonal, 442-3°1
08037 Barcelona, Spain
Telephone +34 93 254 7503
Facsimsle +34 93 254 7504

Sweden

Rothschiid Nordic AB
Strandvagen 7A, 114 56 Stockhelm
Sweden

Telephone +46 (0)8 586 33590
Facsinuile +46 (Q)8 660 9791

Switzerland

Rothschild Holding AG
Rothsctuld Bank AG
Zollikerstrasse 181

8034 Zunch, Swizerland
Telephone +41 (0)44 384 7111
Faesemule +41 (0)44 384 7222

Rothschild Trust (Switzerland) AG
Zollikerstrasse 181

8034 Zurich, Swizerland

Telephone +41 (0)44 384 7111
Facsimule +41 (0)44 384 7201

RTS Geneva 5A

21 rue du Rhéne

1204 Geneva, Switzerland
Telephone +41 (0)22 818 5995
Facsinnle +41 ()22 818 5902

Rothschitds Continuation
Holdings AG

Five Arrows Capital AG
Baarerstrasse 95, Postfach 735
6301 Zug, Switzerland
Telephone +41 (041 720 0680
Facsimmle +41 (0)41 720 0683

nz

Equitas SA

21 rue du Rhéne

1211 Geneva, Swizertand
Telephone +41 (0)22 818 5900
Facstmile +41 {0)22 818 5901

Turkey

Rothschild Kurumsa! Finansman
Hizmetler: Limited Sirketi
Akmerkez Rezidans No 14 D 2
Akmerkez Iy Merkezi Yam

Nispeuye Caddesi, 34340 Euler
Istanbul, Turkey

Telephone +90 212 371 0800
Facsimule +90 212 371 0809

United Arab Emirates
Rothschild (Middle East) Limited

Dubai International Financial Centre
Gate Preaince Building, 7, The Edge
Level 7, PO Box 506570

Dubai, United Arab Emirates
Telephone +971 4 428 4300
Facsimile +971 4 365 3183

Rothschild Europe BV
(Representative Office)

Al Bateen Tower, 8th Floor, C801

Al Bateen Area, Al Bainunah Street
Abu Dbabi %35, United Arab Emurates
Telephone +971 2 403 0700

Facsimile +971 2 667 9602
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Rothschild (Qatar} LLC

PO Box 31316, Al Fardan Office Tower
Office 923 & 924, B-9th Floor, West Bay
Doha, Qatar, United Arab Emirates
Telephone +974 410 1680

Facsimule +974 410 1500

United Kingdom

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited
New Court, St Swithun’s Lane
Londen EC4P 4DU, UK

Telephone +44 (0)20 7280 5000
Faesimde +44 (0)20 7929 1643

82 King Street

Manchescer M2 4WQ, UK
Telephone +44 (D161 827 3800
Facsimule +44 (0}161 833 0293

67 Temple Row

Birmungham B2 5LS, UK
Telephone +44 (0121 600 5252
Facsimtle +44 (03121 643 7207

1 Park Row

Leeds LS1 5NR, UK

Telephone +44 (0)113 200 1900
Facsinile +44 (0)113 243 4507

Rothschild Trust
Corporation Limited

New Court, St Swichin’s Lane
London ECAP 4DU, UK
Telephone +44 (0)20 7280 5000
Facsimede +44 (0)20 7929 5239

Rothschild Private
Management Limited

1 King Wilbham Sereet

London EC4N 7AR, UK
Telephone +44 ()20 7280 5000
Facsemele +44 (0)20 7280 1567

Five Arrows Leasing
Group Limited

Heron House, 5 Heron Square
Richmond-upon-Thames
Surrey TW9 1EL, UK

Telephone +44 (0)20 8334 3900
Facamile +44 (0)20 8332 1636

United States

Rothschild North America Inc
Rothschild Inc

Rothschild Asset Management Inc
1251 Avenue of the Amencas

51st Floor, New York, NY 10020, USA
Telephone + 1 (0)212 403 3500
Facsimule +1 (0)212 403 3501

Rothschild Inc

1101 Connecucut Avenue N'W

Suite 700, Washington DC 20036, USA
Telephone + 1 (0)202 862 1660
Facsimule + 1 (0)202 862 1699

Zimbabwe

MBCA Bank Limited

14th Floor, Old Mutual Centre
Third Street, Harare, Zimbabwe
Telephone +263 {0)4 701636
Facsmele +263 ()4 708005




